
 

 

Please ask for Amanda Taylor: Telephone 01775 764837  

e-mail: amandataylor@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 

 

Committee - CABINET 

 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 10 December 2013 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Cabinet: 
 
Councillors: G A Porter (Leader of the Council), C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the 
Council), P S Przyszlak (Deputy Leader), M G Chandler, R Gambba-Jones, H R Johnson, 
C J Lawton and G J Taylor. 
 
No substitutions permitted. Revised quorum 4. 
 

Note:  Cabinet reports may be referred to Council or Scrutiny Panels.  They 
should therefore be kept for future reference during the current 
committee cycle.   
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
Member Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   2 December 2013 
 



A G E N D A 
 
1.  Apologies for Absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Cabinet held on 5 November 2013.  (Copy enclosed.)   
 

(Pages 
1 - 4) 

3.  Declarations of Interest.   
 
(Members are no longer required to declare personal of prejudicial 
interests but are to declare any new Disclosable Pecuniary Interests that 
are not currently included in their Register of Interests. 
 
Members are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to 
participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of transparency, 
members may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, in 
relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed 
within the Code of Conduct.)    
 

 

4.  Questions raised by the public under Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4.  
 

 

5.  To consider any matters which have been subject to call-in.  
 

 

6.  To consider matters arising from the Policy Development and 
Performance Monitoring Panels in accordance with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure or the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules.  
 

 

7.  Indicative Funding Allocation: Individual Electoral Registration - To 
agree the acceptance of the Indicative Funding Allocation of £21,569 
from the Cabinet Office in relation to Individual Electoral Registration.  
(Joint report of the Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Strategic 
Finance and Democratic Services and the Assistant Director Democratic 
Services enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 
5 - 14) 

8.  General Fund Draft Estimates and Financial Medium Term Plan - To 
consider the General Fund draft revenue and capital estimates and the 
draft Financial Medium Term Plan.  (Joint report of the Deputy Leader / 
Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic Services and the 
Assistant Director Finance (S151) enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 
15 - 92) 

9.  Financial Performance Quarter 2 2013-14 - To provide information on 
the forecast full year financial position of the Council as at 30 September 
2013.  (Joint report of the Deputy Leader / Portfolio Holder for Strategic 
Finance and Democratic Services and the Assistant Director Finance 
(S151) enclosed.) 
 
 
 
 
 

(Pages 
93 - 
112) 



10.  Any other items which the Leader decides are urgent. -  
 
Note:  (i) No other business is permitted unless by reason of 

special circumstances, which shall be specified in the 
Minutes, the Leader is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of urgency.   

 
(ii) Any urgent item of business that is a key decision must 

be dealt with in accordance with paragraphs 15 and 16 of 
the Constitution’s Access to Information Procedure 
Rules. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 19 - 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the CABINET held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 5 November 2013 at 6.30 pm. 
 

 PRESENT  

  
G A Porter (Leader of the Council) 

 

M G Chandler 
R Gambba-Jones 
 

H R Johnson 
P S Przyszlak (Deputy Leader) 
 

G J Taylor 
C N Worth (Deputy 
Leader of the Council) 
 

Junior Portfolio Holders:  
 

A Casson, P E Coupland, S-A Slade and A R Woolf. 

Chief Executive, Assistant Director Finance (S151), Environmental Services Manager 
and Member Services Officer. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors C J Lawton and 
G R Aley, together with Community Representatives:  Councillor Reginald William 
George Boot (Parish Councils), Maureen Scantlebury (Welland Seniors Forum) and 
Jim Tyner (Lincolnshire Police). 
 
In Attendance:  Councillor B Alcock (Chairman, Performance Monitoring Panel), 
Councillor A M Newton (Independent Group Leader) and Councillor M D Seymour 
(Vice-Chairman, Policy Development Panel) and the Joint Communications Team 
Leader. 
 
Community Representatives:  Mr Geoffrey Taylor (Citizens Advice Bureau) and the 
Venerable Tim Barker (Lincolnshire Community and Voluntary Service). 
 

27. MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 1 October 2013 were signed by the Leader as a 
correct record. 
 

28. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No interests were declared. 
 

29. QUESTIONS RAISED BY THE PUBLIC UNDER CABINET PROCEDURE RULE 2.4  

 
No questions were raised under Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4. 
 

30. MATTERS SUBJECT TO CALL-IN  

 
There were no matters subject to call-in. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2.

Page 1



- 20 - 

 

CABINET - 5 November 2013 

 

 

31. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE 

MONITORING PANELS  

 
There were no matters arising from the Policy Development and Performance 
Monitoring Panels. 
 

32. WRITE OFFS  

 
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Strategic 
Finance and Democratic Services and the Assistant Director Finance (S151) which 
sought approval to write off irrecoverable debts. 
 
DECISION:  

  
a)  That the following debts be written off:  
  
Council Tax £12,965.09 
Business Rates £63,649.74 
Accounts Receivable (formerly Sundry Debtors) £18,610.66 
Former Tenant Arrears £21,84.70 
Total £97,410.19 
 
(Other options considered: 

• To approve the recommendation with amendments; or 

• Do nothing. 
Reasons for decision: 

• All recovery methods available had been considered and where appropriate 
pursued before making the decision to write off.) 

 
(Councillor A R Woolf entered the meeting at 6.34 pm, during the consideration of the 
above item.) 
 

33. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 
DECISION: 

 
To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraphs 1, 2, 3 and 4 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

34. WRITE OFFS - APPENDIX  

 
Consideration was given to the appendices relating to the joint report of the Portfolio 
Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic Services and the Assistant Director 
Finance (S151) which sought approval to write off irrecoverable debts.  
  

Page 2



- 21 - 

 

CABINET - 5 November 2013 

 

 

Members queried the processes used for the collection of debts, as different 
arrangements were in place for each type of debt, and suggested that they be 
reviewed.   
 
The Leader stated that although the debts had been approved for write off, should 
any of the individual debtors be located they would still be expected to pay what they 
owed.   
 
DECISION: 

 
That a case study be presented to Cabinet, detailing a start to finish progress report 
for selected debtors. 
 
(Other options considered: 

• The decision to approve the write-offs had been approved under agenda item 7. 
Reasons for decision: 

• To gain a better understanding of the recovery methods and processes used.) 
 

35. ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES ORGANISATIONAL AND SERVICES REVIEW  

 
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder Waste 
Management, Green Spaces and Operational Planning and the Director of 
Commissioning which presented members with a summary of the formal consultation 
responses received and sought authority to implement a restructure of the 
Environmental Services Teams at Breckland and South Holland District Councils in 
order to share further positions between the Authorities, and to introduce headline 
improvement plans in order to address areas of weakness identified within the review 
process. 
 
RECOMMENDED TO FULL COUNCIL: 

 
a) That the implementation of the restructure of Environmental Services  
 within both Breckland and South Holland District Councils be approved, as 

detailed within the report, including: 
 

(i) The provision of the senior management capacity for Environmental 
Services via the appointment of a Corporate/Strategic Manager; jointly 
shared between the two Authorities.  Officers were requested to 
investigate further and report back on the most appropriate organisational 
structure/service arrangements to be managed by this position taking into 
account the potential synergies weaknesses noted within paragraphs 
1.19 – 1.20 within the report; 

 
(ii) The further sharing of posts namely the proposed Senior Environmental 

Services Officer and Senior Waste and Recycling Services Officer; and 
 

(iii) The co-location of Environmental Services staff at West Marsh Road Depot. 
 

Page 3



- 22 - 

 

CABINET - 5 November 2013 

 

 

b) That the Environmental Services Statement of Purpose, detailed in paragraph 
1.7 within the report, be approved; 

 
c) That the strategic and policy development aspects for markets and off- 
 street car parking be transferred to the economic development unit; and 
 
d) That the headline improvements, detailed in paragraphs 1.34 – 1.36 within the 

report, be approved. 
 
(Other options considered: 

• Not to proceed with the organisational re-structure proposal, making the current 
secondments permanent and choosing which of the suggested headline 
improvements to proceed with; or 

• Do nothing, which would leave the organisational structure of Environmental 
Services as it currently existed. 

Reasons for decision: 

• The recommended organisational re-structure, together with the suggested 
headline service improvements, would ensure that Environmental Services at 
both Councils was positioned to be able to effectively deliver what was required 
of it; address the areas of improvement identified; maximise the sharing of 
staffing, skills and other resources between the Council’s thereby increasing 
effectiveness and efficiency; improving customer service and service delivery 
and provide potential cost savings.) 

 
(The meeting ended at 7.05 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
These minutes are published on Friday 8 November 2013.  In accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed above will, unless otherwise stated, 
come into force and may then be implemented on Monday 18 November 2013 (i.e. 
after the expiry of 5 working days from the date of publication of these minutes), 
unless during that period a notice which is signed by at least one member of the 
Council and complies with the requirements of Rules 15(b), (c) and (d) of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules is served on the Assistant Director 
Democratic Services requesting that the decision be called-in and the Assistant 
Director Democratic Services approves the request for call-in.  Where a decision is 
called-in it will firstly be considered by the Performance Monitoring Panel on a date to 
be fixed. 
 
Any FINAL DECISIONS and any URGENT DECISIONS take effect immediately. 
 
Any RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL detailed above will be submitted for 
consideration to the meeting of the full Council on Wednesday 13 November 2013. 

Page 4



 

 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Deputy Leader / Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic 

Services and the Assistant Director Democratic Services  
 
To:    Cabinet – 10 December 2013 
    
(Author:  Rhonda Oldfield – Team Leader – Member and Electoral Services) 
 
Subject: Indicative Funding Allocation: Individual Electoral Registration 
 
Purpose: To agree the acceptance of the Indicative Funding Allocation of £21,569 

from the Cabinet Office in relation to Individual Electoral Registration 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Electoral Registration and Administration (ERA) Act 2013 provides the 

legislative framework for the introduction of Individual Electoral Registration (IER).   
 
1.2 Under the current system of electoral registration an annual household canvass 

form is sent to each address, which is completed by one individual on behalf of 
everyone living at the property.  From July 2014 this system of registration will be 
replaced by one of (IER). 

 
1.3 From this date all electors must register individually and have their application 

verified before being added to the register. People must provide name, address, 
National Insurance Number (NINO) and date of birth; these are cross checked with 
the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) before names are added to the 
register under the new system.  

 
1.4 A confirmation exercise will begin in July 2014 to confirm existing electors on the 

register where details match with those held by DWP. Those not matched will be 
invited, reminded in 2014 and 2015 and have until December 2015 to register under 
the new system. 

 
1.5 The requirement to provide a signature has been dropped from the new legislation, 

opening the way for online registrations, which will accepted across England and 
Wales from July 2014. 

 

Recommendation to full Council:  
 
a) That the Indicative Funding Allocation of £21,569 from the Cabinet Office in 

relation to Individual Electoral Registration be accepted; and   
 
b) That any further funding allocation that becomes available in relation to 

Individual Electoral Registration from the Cabinet Office be accepted. 

Agenda Item 7.

Page 5



 

1.6 Ensuring that the registers are as complete and accurate as possible and that levels 
of completeness and accuracy do not decline under IER is a key aim of the 
Government.  Data matching, whereby records on the electoral register are 
matched against other sources of public data, is one tool which could assist in 
ensuring that the registers remain as complete and accurate as possible, both 
during the transition to IER in 2014/15 and on an ongoing basis.  The transition to 
IER allows for the service to become digitised with applications for registration 
being submitted on-line and being confirmed (or otherwise) through the IES digital 
service as well as through paper based requests. 

 
1.7 As part of the transition to Individual Electoral Registration the government are 

committed to fully funding the transitional arrangements.  South Holland District 
council has been allocated a total of £21,569 to implement Individual Electoral 
Registration for the year 2014/15.  Appendix A (attached) sets out in greater detail 
the formula used to calculate the funding allocation. 

  
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To not accept the funding. 
 
2.2 To accept the funding allocation as offered. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 The introduction of IER is a Government initiative and will be set out in law.  The 

funding allocation will support the Council in fulfilling its obligations under this 
initiative. 
 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS  
 
4.1 The benefit of individual registration is in delivering a more secure system of 

registration than at present by allowing a third party check of the information 
supplied on registration against the National Insurance Number (NINO) data.   
 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 There are no direct legal implications of accepting the funding allocation. The 

Council will however have duties under law to comply with the initiative.    
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 

Page 6



 

5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 The cost of the transition to IER will be funding by the Cabinet Office.  
 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 There are no direct risks in accepting the funding allocation. 
 
5.8 Staffing 
 
5.8.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none 
  
5.9 Stakeholders / Consultation 
 
5.9.1  This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 All 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers:- There are no background papers 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post:   Rhonda Oldfield 
Telephone Number: 01775 764705 
Email:   roldfield@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Key Decision:  No  
 
Exempt Decision: No  
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A – Cabinet Office letter 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPENDIX A 

 Colin Dingwall 

Programme Director 
Electoral Registration Transformation Programme 
 
 
Email  IERfunding@cabinet-office.gsi.gov.uk  
 

 1 Horse Guards Road 
London  
SW1A 2HQ 
 
 
Web www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk 
 

 

Geoff Rivers 

South Holland 

  

Dear Geoff, 

Individual Electoral Registration: 2014/15 indicative funding allocation  

The Cabinet Office at both official and ministerial level has taken every opportunity to assure local authorities 

and in particular Chief Executives and Electoral Registration Officers (EROs) that the Government will fund 

the additional cost of IER. I am pleased to be able to write to you today to give your indicative funding 

allocation for 2014/15.  

 

I firmly believe that the allocations are fair, realistic and truly reflect the reality of the work that is to be done.    

 

Cabinet Office officials have worked closely with a range of local authorities to ensure that we have captured 

all the additional costs of IER. This work was essential to reconcile the top down estimates calculated within 

government with the expertise and practical knowledge of local authority practitioners. I would like to pass on 

my thanks to EROs and their staff for a further example of collaborative working between the Cabinet Office 

and electoral administrators.   

 

An exact explanation of the formula used to calculate each authority’s allocation is attached at annex A. I 

would like to minimise the burden of this process on you. To that end I would like to fund the entire 

calculated additional cost of IER to you up front and avoid the necessity for you to bid retrospectively for your 

full allocation. 

 

I will on receipt of a declaration from your Section 151 officer, further increase your allocation by 25%, if you 

give an assurance to continue to meet the current level of costs for electoral administration in your authority. 

The requirements of that declaration are set out at annex B.   

 

Your upfront allocation will be: £17,255 

 

With a declaration and the assurance it gives your upfront allocation will increase and will be:  £21,569 

 

I expect this allocation to cover all costs in the majority of authorities but I recognise that a generic national 

formula may not cover all eventualities for all authorities. I will therefore be prepared to consider individual 

cases to fund additional costs if they are precisely and strongly evidenced and have not already been 

recognised. My team will be in contact with you in November to clarify this justification led funding process.  

 

The Cabinet Office Delivery Managers and County Leads will continue our collaborative working with each 

local authority in preparation for IER implementation and will field any immediate queries or concerns. If you 

have any queries about this allocation and how you access the justification led element, please 

contact your Delivery Manager. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Colin Dingwall  

 

Annex A - FUNDING THE TRANSISTION TO INDIVIDUAL ELECTORAL REGISTRATION (IER) 

Page 9



 

 
Calculating the additional requirements of IER 

 

Allocations   

 

As outlined in previous correspondence, local authorities in England and Wales will be funded directly 

through non-ring fenced grants under section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003. This will help ensure 

that Electoral Registration Officers (EROs) receive the money they require during the transition.  

 

These grants are not ring fenced, to give local authorities the flexibility they need to invest their funding 

creatively and efficiently, but we expect Chief Executives and EROs to direct appropriate funds to their 

Electoral Services to ensure the successful delivery of IER, in line with their legal responsibilities.  

 

The situation in Scotland is different, with legal responsibility in the hands of EROs, who in many cases are 

separate to local authorities. To ensure that the costs of making this change are fully funded in Scotland, 

Scottish EROs may therefore invoice the Cabinet Office directly.  

 

The funding formula consists of five elements: 

 

• IER write out - authorities are required to write to, issue reminders to, and canvass in person those 
electors on the register who are not automatically confirmed using DWP data. This is by far the 
biggest cost driver because the volume of activity required to register everyone individually will be 
greater than normal canvass activity. For authorities with a lower match rate there will be 
considerably more letter activity in order to achieve comparable levels of completeness. This cost is 
netted off against the ‘normal’ canvass cost met from the Revenue Support Grant. Where 
confirmation rates of your authorities 16+ population are greater than 80%

1
 (note, this will be 

different to the confirmation rate based on the % of your current electors), we calculate that there 
should be no net additional cost required for the IER write out or the Confirmation process, 
compared to your business as usual cost, so the formula does not award any write out funding 
above this threshold.  
 

• Verifications exceptions processes - for the first time EROs will be systematically checking new 
registrations against DWP data. For the majority of applications this will cost the local authority 
nothing - their software system will just send off electors’ details to DWP which will respond digitally. 
However, DWP will be unable to confirm every elector. Experience from Northern Ireland shows that 
a minority of electors cannot be verified using DWP data: for these electors, the ERO will need to 
write to and process alternative forms of identification – this is a significant additional cost; 
 

• New duties outside the canvass period – Presently, EROs must conduct ‘rolling registration’ 
throughout the year, registering those electors who wish to do so all year round. The Electoral 
Registration and Administration Act requires EROs to take more active steps (two letters and a door 
knock) when they become aware of potential new electors, incurring a greater cost when electors do 
not respond immediately. The legislation will also require more reviews where they cannot find 
evidence. These reviews will in practice simply be writing a letter to the property to confirm that the 
elector has indeed vacated so that they can be removed. 
 

• Cost of the confirmation process - Confirmation letters will be sent to electors who are data 
matched or who subsequently register to vote. This funding line is very closely associated with the 
IER write out because, as outlined above, we calculate that authorities with more than 80% 
confirmation rates (again as a % of the 16+ population, rather than of registered electors) should be 
able to meet the costs of the IER write out and the confirmation letters from their Revenue Support 
Grant. However many authorities at the 80% threshold have fed back that they would struggle to fully 
meet the cost of the confirmation letters from their grant causing a lot of anxiety. Therefore this 
funding line is presented separately partly for presentational reasons but also to soften the 80% 
confirmation cliff edge slightly. We would envisage this to be a small allocation which supports the 
Revenue Support Grant and the IER write out rather than fully covering the costs which should be 
met largely from the existing grant.   

                                                           
1
 Defined as the number of non-carry forward DWP greens as a percentage of the 16+ population 

Page 10



 

 

• Change management - In 2013/14 local authorities were given an average allocation of £4,000 to 
help them manage the change to IER. This has been used for varied purposes including travelling 
and attendance at events to the new reporting requirements. To complete the change we propose 
that should be extended for a further 6 months. 
 

Allocating this based on need 

 

ELEMENT 1: IER write out- Local authorities who have more people unconfirmed or carried forward will 

have more people to write to and generally canvass. The government proposed, in December 2012, that 

more of this funding line should be given to authorities with a higher number of unconfirmed electors on the 

basis of the formula below:  

 

Allocation of a given local authority ‘X’ for the IER write out: 

X=

 

Source: Confirmation Dry Run results 2013; ONS 2012 mid-year population estimates  

This formula divides the IER write out national allocation between local authorities who have confirmed less 

than 80% of their electorate. Local authorities who have more unconfirmed electors above this threshold will 

receive proportionately more. So, for example, a local authority with a 78% confirmation rate and 10,000 

people above the 80% threshold would receive twice as much as a local authority of the same size with a 

79% confirmation rate and 5,000 people. 

 

Note that this divisional formula explicitly denies any IER write out funding to local authorities who only have 

more than 80% of their non-carry forward 16+ population confirmed because authorities above this threshold 

should be able to conduct the IER write out with the funding normally assigned to the canvass.  

 
As outlined in previous correspondence with my predecessors 50% of the top recoverable amount for the 

IER write out will be granted upfront without a declaration, 70% will be granted on signing the declaration 

and the remainder can be applied for where needed with suitable evidence. The minimum top coverable 

amount is set at 50p per member of the 16+ population.  

Detail of the assumptions will be posted online along with an excel spreadsheet laying out the calculations 

transparently.  

ELEMENT 2: Verifications exceptions processes- Local authorities which have bigger registers are likely 

to have more verification exceptions to process so we propose that allocation should be based on the size of 

the register. Note that this formula is not defrayed at all against the Revenue Support Grant because this is a 

completely new burden.  

 

Allocations of a given local authority ‘X’ for the verification exceptions processes: 

X=

 

Source: ONS Registration statistics 2013 

This formula divides the verification exceptions process national allocation between local authorities based 

on the number of electors registered. Local authorities who have a greater number of electors registered will 

therefore get a higher proportion of the allocation. 

 

Page 11



 

ELEMENT 3: New duties outside the canvass period- ERO’s with a more mobile population will naturally 

have more rolling registrations to chase throughout the year under the new legal duties and will also have 

more reviews to conduct so we propose that local authorities with more mobile population should get more of 

this allocation. 

 

Allocation of a given local authority ‘X’ for their new duties: 

X=

 

Source: Electoral Commission 2011 rolling registration statistics 

This formula divides the new duties allocation between local authorities based on the number of rolling 

registrations they find during the year. Local authorities who have a greater number of confirmations will 

therefore get a higher proportion of the allocation. 

 

ELEMENT 4: Cost of the confirmation process- As EROs with more people confirmed will be spending 

more on confirmation letters we propose that this should be divided on the basis of confirmed population.  

 

Allocation of a given local authority ‘X’ for the confirmation process: 

X=

 

Source: 2013 Confirmation Dry Run 

This formula divides the Confirmation allocation between local authorities based on the number of 

confirmation letters they send. Local authorities who have a greater number of confirmations will therefore 

get a higher proportion of the allocation. 

 

Note that, unlike ELEMENT 1, we do not propose to create an explicit funding cut off as part of this formula 

to reflect contribution from the Revenue Support Grant because this funding line is intended to smooth the 

80% cut off.   

 

ELEMENT 5: Cost of change management- In 2013/14 an allocation was given for change management to 

help authorities manage the change to their internal processes for the biggest change to registration since 

Victorian times. In the absence of robust and update statistics on electoral team size local authorities with a 

larger population were given more as they generally have a larger team to change. 

 

Allocation of a given local authority ‘X’ for the change management: 

X=

 

Source: ONS 2012 midyear population estimates. 

This formula divides the change management allocation between local authorities based on population.  

 

 

Annex B.1 - the purpose of the declaration of understanding 

Page 12



 

The Government announced that to minimise the burdens on local authorities the majority of this grant would 

be distributed upfront without any further need for local authorities to claim in order to minimise these 

burdens. 

 

In order to ensure that all local differences and unexpected circumstances can be captured local authorities 

are then allowed to claim more if they provide justification. To ensure that we do not inadvertently subside 

local budgets with the larger 2014/15 allocations we ask local authorities sign a declaration that they will not 

reduce their own contribution. A signed declaration will ensure that you receive a greater proportion of the 

funding upfront.  

 
The declaration is below, please return via email to the IERfunding@cabinet-office.gsi.gov.uk or return via 

your Delivery Manager. The option to sign will be available until the 1st January 2014. If you have already 

signed a declaration, this will remain valid and no further action is required.  

Annex B.2. – The declaration of understanding 

Dear Section 151 Officers,  

Introduction  

 

This note details the Cabinet Office funding settlement to meet the additional responsibilities arising from the 

Electoral Registration and Administration Act.  

 

I am confident that local authorities will meet their statutory responsibilities and that local authorities will put 

in place an appropriate budget to meet these.  

 

We ask you to sign the attached declaration to give assurance that the division of responsibility for funding 

the new duties under the Electoral Registration and Administration Act is fully understood, given the 

additional net costs will be met by Cabinet Office, but current funding in formula grant will need to be used to 

meet the current level of costs. This declaration will therefore enable Cabinet Office to effectively decrease 

audit burdens, by providing greater proportion of the canvass funding for the transitional year of 2014/15 as 

an upfront grant.  

 

Background  

 

From summer 2013 Electoral Registration Officers (EROs) will be begin the transition from the current 

household registration system for electors to Individual Electoral Registration (IER). IER is the most 

significant change to our system of electoral registration for many years; the changes aim to modernise and 

improve our electoral registration system, creating one which has better protection against electoral fraud 

and is more convenient for citizens to register to vote. It will put citizens first and aims to increase public trust 

in our elections while maintaining the level of completeness and accuracy in the electoral register.  

 

The Government has committed to meeting the additional cost of IER and the Cabinet Office will thus be 

providing additional funding to local authorities in England and Wales directly through non ring-fenced grants 

under section 31 (s.31) of the Local Government Act 2003 and will be paying funds directly to Scottish 

EROs. This s.31 grant is intended to be equal to the cost of the additional responsibilities placed on the ERO 

by the Electoral Registration and Administration Act, over and above those arising from the Representation 

of the People Act 1983 (as amended) 2014/15. The intention is that this additional funding will ensure that 

local authorities will be able to fully reimburse their ERO for all his responsibilities under the Electoral 

Registration and Administration Act without requiring increased registration funding from the council budget.  

 

Please note we expect a signed declaration from all the 151 officers in each council for Scotland that make 

up the Joint Valuation Board. 

 

I recognise, of course, that it is the responsibility of the local authority to allocate budgets to meet its 

statutory responsibilities. In practice I anticipate that this will usually mean local authorities will maintain their 

registration budgets at current levels (i.e. those currently needed to meet the responsibilities arising from the 

Representation of the People Act 1983). This will ensure that, in combination with the additional s.31 grant 

Page 13



 

money, EROs have enough funding to meet all their responsibilities in 2014/15. I also acknowledge however 

that local authorities are making efficiency savings, delivering more with less, and thus some local authorities 

may also be able to meet their statutory responsibilities by using their resources more efficiently.  

 

Declaration  

 

By signing this I confirm that I understand that the s.31 grant is intended to be supplementary funding to 

cover only the net additional cost of the new responsibilities arising from the Electoral Registration and 

Administration Act and that consequently it is not intended solely to replace the usual level of funding of 

registration to meet the duties arising from the Representation of the People Act 1983 (as amended) which it 

is intended will be met from local authority budgets in the usual way.  

 

 

Name of 151 officerKKKKKKKK. 

 

Local Authority of 151 officerKKKKKKKK.  

 

Signed KKKKKKKKKKK..(151 Officer)   DateKKKKKKKKK. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Deputy Leader / Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic 

Services and the Assistant Director Finance (S151)    
 
To:    Cabinet – 10 December 2013 
 
(Author:  Mark Finch, Assistant Director – Finance) 
 
Subject: General Fund Draft Estimates and Financial Medium Term Plan 
 
Purpose: To consider the General Fund draft revenue and capital estimates and 

the draft Financial Medium Term Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The appendices to this report outline the draft 2014-15 revenue and capital 

estimates for the General Fund; the outline financial position through to 2018-19 
and the financial medium term plan.  

  
1.2 The financial medium term plan sets out the framework within which the budget is to 

be set to ensure that it enables the Council to achieve its own corporate objectives.    
 
1.3  This report highlights General Fund estimates. A separate report on the Housing 

Revenue Account (HRA) budget and 30 year Business plan will be presented to 
Cabinet in due course following scrutiny by Governance and Audit Committee.  

 
1.4   The attached appendices set out the draft General Fund estimates and     

supporting papers. The revenue estimates will require further efficiencies in order to 
produce balanced and sustainable budgets. The attached appendices set out the 
draft General Fund estimates and supporting papers.  

 
1.5      The existing five year capital programme has been amended to reflect revised    

budgets and scheme forecasts. Managers were made aware that the Council has 
limited resources to finance all of these schemes without the need for further 
borrowing 

 
    During 2014-15 budget setting process, a small amount of new schemes were  

submitted for inclusion in the Capital Programme.  Exec Board have been given the 
latest programme with schemes considered essential and desirable submitted but 
not added in estimate time 2013-14. 

 

Recommendation to full Council: 
 
a)   That the draft General Fund capital and revenue estimates along with the 

draft financial medium term plan be approved and released for consultation. 
 
 

Agenda Item 8.

Page 15



 To achieve a programme that can be funded the majority of new schemes have not 
been included in the proposed five year capital programme. This will be reviewed as 
resources are identified to fund these schemes. The schemes have been 
categorised as essential or desirable to indicate the relative priorities as set out in 
Appendix E. 

 
1.6 Following approval of this report, the budget will enter a consultation period. 

Responses will be invited from residents and businesses through the Council 
website and also through a budget scrutiny meeting with the scrutiny panel. This will 
allow the panel to examine the estimates. Final estimates will be presented to 
Cabinet on 18th February 2014 with a recommendation for approval to Full Council 
on 26th February 2014. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To note the report and make changes if necessary. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
3.1 To comply with the budgetary and policy framework 

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS AND TIMELINES 
 
4.1 To provide an early view of the Councils financial position and seek stakeholder 

feedback prior to formal budget setting. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
 
 

Page 16



5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 The report is of a financial nature and financial implications are covered within the 

report. 
 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 Risks are set out in Appendix A 
 
5.8 Staffing 
 
5.8.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
  
5.9 Stakeholders / Consultation 
 
5.9.1 Following approval of this report, the budget will enter a consultation period. 

Responses will be invited from residents and businesses through the Council 
website and also through a budget scrutiny meeting with the scrutiny panel 

  
5.10 Other  
 
5.10.1 The financial nature of the report and appendices covers the full range of Council 

services and priorities. 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 The implications of the report and appendices cover all wards. 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers:- - None 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post: Mark Finch, Assistant Director, Finance 
Telephone Number: 01775 761161 
 Email: mark.finch@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
 
Key Decision: Yes 
 

Page 17



Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A -  General Fund Budget 2014-15 and Financial Medium Term Plan 2014-15 to 
2018-19. 
Appendix B -  General Fund Summary 2014-15 to 2018-19 
Appendix C -  Spalding Special Expenses  
Appendix D -  Reserves 
Appendix E -  General Fund Capital Programme 2014-15 to 2018-19. 
Appendix F -  Capital Strategy 
Appendix G - Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
Appendix H -  Fees and Charges 
 

Page 18



 - 1 - 

 
Appendix A 

 

General Fund Budget 2014-15 and Financial Medium Term Plan 
 2014-15 to 2018-19. 
 

This appendix is the combined budget estimates and Medium Term Plan 2014-19.  
The Medium Term Plan is the link between the Corporate Plan, which sets out the 
aims and ambitions agreed with our partners, and the Medium Term Financial Plan 
which sets out the cost of what the Council is currently providing.  The plan also 
establishes a set of financial policies and principles which provide a sound basis for 
maintaining the financial integrity of the Council over the medium term. The Housing 
Revenue Account estimates and business plan are dealt with under a separate report 
following scrutiny by Governance and Audit Committee. 
 
1. Budget Summary 
 

The following table shows the headline figures relating to the budget estimates for 
2014-15 compared to the 2013-14 position: 
 
 
Description 

2013-14 
£’000 

2014-15 
£’000 

South Holland precept requirement * 3,890 3,905 

Local Government Settlement – Start-up Funding 
Assessment  

 
7,316 

 
6,370 

Transitional Scheme Grant 18  

Efficiency Support for Services in Sparse Areas Grant 16  

Council Tax Freeze Grant        39 94       

New Homes Bonus applied - - 

Special expenses account 187 187 

(Efficiency)/contingency requirement - (498) 

   

Council Tax Band D      £156.15 £155.61    

Tax Base  24,912 25,098 

Band D cost per week £3.00 £3.00 

 
Of all the homes in our area 60.11% are in Band A or B, and 83.54% are in Bands A to 
C. Therefore the majority of homes pay less than the £3.00 per week Band D 
equivalent towards the District services we provide. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 - 2 - 

The following table details the Band D Council Tax levels for all precepting authorities 
over the last nine years: 
 

  
Lincs County 

Council 
Lincs Police 
Authority 

South Holland 
(excl special 
expenses) Average Parish Total 

    Increase   Increase   Increase   Increase   Increase 

  £ % £ % £ % £ % £ % 

2005-06 
    

899.82  4.90% 
 

119.43  6.42% 
 

134.56  4.75% 
 

19.81  2.96% 
 

1,173.62  5.02% 

2006-07 
    

944.73  4.99% 
 

125.37  4.97% 
 

140.28  4.25% 
 

23.12  16.71% 
 

1,233.50  5.10% 

2007-08 
    

987.21  4.50% 
 

131.58  4.95% 
 

145.19  3.50% 
 

23.68  2.42% 
 

1,287.66  4.39% 

2008-09 
 

1,021.77  3.50% 
 

165.78  25.99% 
 

149.18  2.75% 
 

25.55  7.90% 
 

1,362.28  5.80% 

2009-10 
 

1,039.68  1.75% 
 

174.06  4.99% 
 

153.13  2.65% 
 

26.50  3.72% 
 

1,393.37  2.28% 

2010-11 
 

1,065.69  2.50% 
 

179.28  3.00% 
 

157.03  2.55% 
 

27.35  3.21% 
 

1,429.35  2.58% 

2011-12 
 

1,065.69  0.00% 
 

179.28  0.00% 
 

157.03  0.00% 
 

28.04  2.52% 
 

1,430.04  0.05% 

2012-13 
 

1,065.69  0.00% 
 

186.39  3.97% 
 

156.60  -0.27% 
 

31.94  4.10% 
 

1,440.62  0.74% 

2013-14 
 

1,065.69  0.00% 
 

190.08  1.98% 
 

156.15 -0.29% 33.26  4.13% 
 

1,445.18  0.32% 

 
 
The following chart shows the average Band D Council Tax levels (excluding parish 
precepts) for Lincolnshire Councils for 2013-14.  
 
 

 
 
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

Lincoln West Lindsey Boston South Holland South Kesteven North Kesteven East Lindsey 

Average band D Council Tax by authority (2013/14) excluding Parish Precepts -

Lincolnshire Authorities

Page 20



 - 3 - 

 
 
 

2. 2014-15 Estimates 
 
The table below shows the budget estimates for 2013-14 and 2014-15 by type of 
expenditure/income split over the standard CIPFA classifications.   
 
Appendix B shows the General Fund estimates over the medium term. 
 
 

  

2013/14 
Estimate 
£'000 

2014/15 
Estimate 
£'000 

Variance 
£'000 

Employees Related Expenses 6,290 6,396 106 

Premises Related Expenses 973 1,063 90 

Transport Related Expenses 1,357 1,040 (317) 

Supplies & Services 2,975 3,380 405 

Drainage Board Levies 2,185 2,241 56 

Parish Precepts 562 573 11 

Grants to Parishes 77 0 (77) 

Third Party Payments 2,837 2,768 (69) 

Transfer Payments 18,932 19,806 874 

Capital Charges 697 973 276 

Capital Financing and Other Adjustments (399) (1,029) (630) 

Movement on Reserves 339 794 455 

Efficiencies 0 (498) (498) 

Total Expenditure 36,825 37,507 682 

    

Rents and Service Charges (779) (690) 89 

Fees & Charges (3,177) (3,228) (51) 

Grants, Contributions and Reimbursements (19,382) (20,680) (1,298) 

Investment Income (50) (95) (45) 

Support Service Recharges (647) (737) (90) 

Total Income (24,035) (25,430) (1,395) 

    

Net Cost of Services 12,790 12,077 (713) 

 
 
 

Explanation of Variances 
 
Employee Related Expenses 
Increase as a result of incremental pay progression, and a further provision for 
pension costs relating to vacant posts which are covered by agency staff. There is a 
2% vacancy factor built into the estimates. The budget also includes the additional 
resources which have been funded by the Waste Collection Support Grant 
 
Premises Related Expenses  
The main variance is the planned maintenance programme, which is funded by the 
repairs and renewals reserve. This is in the process of being assessed, to ascertain 
where savings can be made. This will be factored into the final budgets. 

Page 21



 - 4 - 

 
 
 
Transport 
The commercial vehicles previously leased in Environmental Services will be 
purchased outright in August 2014. Revenue savings arising from this are reflected 
within transport costs (£373k). Fuel budgets have been maintained at their existing 
level, but vehicle maintenance costs have increased by (£13k.) Corporate savings 
have been made on leased car allowances (£5k). An increase in lump sum and 
mileage allowances shows for (£10k) due to Grants for Growth, which is offset by 
grant income 
 
Supplies & Services 
Main variances in supplies and services include additional expenditure all funded by 
income, Waste Incentive grant (£29k), Health promotion grant (£116k), Grants for 
Growth advertising (£14k) delegated budget previously HRA element (£90k) and 
Lincolnshire procurement fees (£36k), offset by smaller savings.    
 
Third Party Payments 
This budget includes contractual commitments to both Compass Point Business 
Services and Lincolnshire Legal Services. Compass Point has been budgeted at 5% 
savings year on year.  
  
Transfer Payments 
The budget covers the payment of Rent allowances and Rent Rebates, reflecting 
current case loads. Additionally it covers grants and contributions paid where the 
Council does not benefit from the provision of a service, including a new ‘Grants for 
Growth’ project. Council Tax benefits ceased to exist from 1 April 2013, following the 
introduction of the localised Council Tax scheme.  Housing benefit payments are 
funded through Government subsidy and are included under Grants, Contributions and 
Reimbursements.  
 
The main variances are Grants for Growth expenditure (£585k) offset by income, rent 
allowances (£291k) and rent rebates (£37k). Budget savings have been made in 
homelessness grants and contributions (£20k), finance contributions (£10k) and 
insurance (£50k).  
 
Fees & Charges 
This includes an increased income for Housing Benefit Overpayments (£350k) and 
Building control consultancy (£30k) and procurement income to offset supplies and 
services expenditure (£36k) and smaller other areas.  
 
This is offset by a reduction in Car Parking income (£20k), Bulky waste collections 
(£8.5k), Markets (£5k), Building control fees (£40k) and Licence fees (£8k) and 
recycling income.  These revised budgets all reflect the current year end position 
forecast for 2013/14. 
 
The contract of dry recyclables is currently being finalised, so income figures are not 
included at this stage. This should reduce the efficiency required for the final version. 
 
 
 

Page 22



 - 5 - 

Grants, Contributions & Reimbursements 
This includes additional Government subsidy for Housing benefit payments, offsetting 
costs included in Transfer Payments above. Additionally this includes new 
Government grants such as the new Grants for Growth project (£585k) and Health 
Promotion grant (£116k) 
 
 
Recharges 
Recharges will be reviewed as the final part of budget setting process and include 
recharges to the Housing Revenue Account, to reflect its share of the Corporate and 
Democratic Core and its share of support services. The variance reflects the charge to 
the HRA for delegated Member budgets (£90k), shown in supplies and services.  
 
3. Principles of Budget Preparation 
 

The following principles have been used in the budget preparation process in order to: 
o Provide a consistent and authorised approach to the preparation of revenue 

and capital estimates. 
o Ensure estimates are prepared in line with available resources. 
o Ensure that estimates are prepared to reflect corporate priorities. 

 

Budget principles: 
o Detailed working sheets are maintained for all budget headings and these are 

prepared by the budget manager, with the exception of central items. 
o Central items are calculated by the CPBS accountancy team.  The central items 

include items such as: salaries, insurance, support service recharges, capital 
accounting entries, interest paid and received, pensions, National Insurance 
(NI), special expenses, mobiles phones and postages. 

o The full effect of known pay awards is incorporated into the estimates and a 
provision made for future years, based on CMT guidance (taking into account 
any Central Government policies). 

o Staffing estimates are prepared on the basis of approved staffing levels as 
provided by Human Resources and have been signed off by budget managers.  
These estimates include an allowance for employers NI, superannuation 
contributions and lump sum amounts.  

o  Budget Managers have signed off the salary allocations, so expenditure occurs 
where officer time is spent, within in each service area; 

o Controllable expenditure is defined as expenditure on employees, premises 
(excluding business rates), transport, supplies and services, but excluding 
internal recharges. 

o There will be no allowance for inflation, unless contractual or related to salaries. 
o We should seek additional scrutiny and challenge for accessing capital 

resources and ensure that the programme only reflects schemes that are 
sufficiently scoped to allow delivery. 

o A review of fees and charges to ensure optimisation of income where consistent 
with policy. 

o An acceptance that a viable budget was already created last year and we adjust 
it rather than zero base. Notes have been included by budget managers for 
against each controllable budget. This will enable future challenge.  

o To set a balanced budget with no long term dependency on General Balances. 
o To work towards a zero balance on the collection fund. 

Page 23



 - 6 - 

o Only the 2014-15 budget will be formally approved, future years are indicative 
only for both revenue and capital. 

 
 
 

4. Grant Settlement Assumptions 
 
In previous years we have received a government settlement for a set number of years 
giving the amount of funding receivable for those years, with our last allocation being 
2012-13, however government funding has changed.  Instead of receiving a fixed 
funding amount from government, from 1 April 2013 we are now reliant on a new 
model which is geared towards the local raising of funds.  Changes to schemes in 
respect of non-domestic rates (NDR) and localised council tax reduction scheme 
(LCTRS) have brought a greater degree of risk and variability to the Council’s funding. 
 
Under the new scheme a proportion of NDR income is retained by district and county 
councils through a system of top-ups and tariffs.  The remaining NDR income is 
centralised by government and distributed back to local authorities through the formula 
grant process, thus allowing the government to retain a proportion of business rates 
centrally to meet public expenditure targets.  This formula grant element has previous 
specific grants “rolled into” it (eg. the council tax freeze grant and the homelessness 
prevention grant).  Whilst the headline figures of this scheme quote a 40% share of 
NDR income retained by district councils, in reality this is not the case.  The tariff 
system reduces the NDR income retained by South Holland to a “baseline funding” 
figure calculated by government which is actually around 12.5% of the overall NDR 
income collected by the Council.   
 
Any growth over and above the NDR income that Government has assumed for 2013-
14 is shared between central and local government, with our local share equating to 
20% of the total growth.   
 
SHDC is currently part of the Lincolnshire Business Rates pool (along with 
Lincolnshire County Council and North Kesteven District Council) which means that 
any additional business rates growth is retained in the county pool rather than being 
paid as tariff to central government. With 2013/14 being year one, the financial position 
is being monitored by Revenues, with an estimate being incorporated into the budgets 
for the final paper. Other Lincolnshire districts are considering joining the pool, and an 
application has been made to expand the pool  in 2014.  
 
As 2013-14 is the first year of operation for this scheme, South Holland has taken a 
cautious approach to forecasting the amount of business rates it retains to fund its 
services. The amount included within the budget and Medium Term Plan is based on 
the original government forecast. Appeals and revaluations can have a significant 
impact on the amount of business rates collected. For example a recent re-
categorisation of underground power cabling from power stations will lead to a 
reduction in revenue of over £50k per annum.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 - 7 - 

It is likely that Revenue Support Grant will be reduced significantly over the coming 
years, as greater emphasis is placed on generating business rates growth and 
increasing the taxbase through encouraging the development of additional homes and 
bringing privately owned empty homes back into use.   
 
A grant for Small Business Rates Relief has not yet been included. Once the 
accounting treatment has been clarified, it may reduce the efficiency required. 
 
Following the Spending Round (SR13) this summer, LG Futures modelled the impact 
of future years funding. The assumptions made to the reduction of funding across 
future years, has been built into the medium term plan. 
 
The table below shows the reduction in funding as per LG Futures modelling 
 

 
 
 

The table below shows the estimated level of budgeted central grants.  
 

 
 
 
A number of specific grants were rolled into the Revenue Support Grant and Business 
Rates Baseline Funding from 2013/14. The funding assumptions are based on the LG 
Futures modelling tool for the purposes of the draft forecast, but will be amended for 
the final Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) once the settlement is received from 
central government.  
 
CLG announced a council tax freeze grant offer to local authorities for 2013-14 and 
2014-15.  The funding provided authorities with the equivalent of a 1% council tax 
increase for 2013-14 and 2014-15, if council tax was not increased in 2013-14 and 
2014-15. 

Page 25



 - 8 - 

 
On 10 December 2012, the Department for Communities and Local Government 
published the provisional allocations for the New Homes Bonus scheme. The scheme 
commenced in April 2011.  
For 2014-15, South Holland’s allocation being £965,000, 2013/14 (£761,660), with an 
additional amount of £24,774. This scheme is designed to provide incentives and 
rewards for councils and communities who build houses in their area.  
 
Allocations for the term of the Medium Term Financial Plan are shown in the table 
below, but from 2014-15 is subject to revision. The contributions to reserve include the 
revisions estimated by LG Futures. 
 
Annual grant allocations will be transferred to the Council Tax Reserve as currently 
they do not support the base budget. 
 

 
 
The Council has received confirmation of £1,768,050 grant funding from CLG to 
enhance its refuse and recycling service which has been built into the Medium Term 
Financial Plan. It is estimated that capital expenditure will account for £1,039,000 of 
this grant with the remainder being allocated to revenue. 
 
5. Collection Fund 
 
Each year the Council is required to calculate the balance on its Collection Fund.  In 
the current difficult economic climate, the Medium Term Plan target is to have a 
minimal balance on the Collection Fund, forecasting a zero balance in future years. 
Figures indicate a nil balance for 2013-14 and 2014-15.  
 
The Council Tax Benefits reforms will impact on future year’s collection rates and 
Collection Fund balance. 
 

6. Tax Base 
 
Delegated authority has been given to the S151 Officer to approve the taxbase, as 
legally the taxbase can only be set in the window 1 December to 31 January. From 
2013-14 onwards, the taxbase appears radically different to previous years, with the 
Council implementing Council Tax technical reforms (removing certain discounts and 
exemptions which increase the taxbase) and bringing in local support for council tax 
that replaces Council Tax Benefit (reducing the taxbase).  

Page 26



 - 9 - 

 
For 2013-14 the tax base was 24,912 and for 2014-15 (25,098) a 0.75% increase has 
been applied. For all future years a 0.2% increase has been forecast. The assumed 
figures are shown in section 7 of this report. The Council is consulting on a Local 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme (LCTRS) as it is considering making amendments to 
the transitional scheme that was introduced in 2013 following the government 
changes. This will be subject to a separate report being presented to Council in the 
New Year. Any changes to the scheme will impact council tax base. This draft budget 
has been prepared on the basis of no changes, so any future decision will be factored 
into the final budget.    
 
In 2013-14 the Council paid grants totalling £67k to parishes as part of the transitional 
arrangements for implementing the local Council Tax Reduction Scheme. This was a 
one-off payment and will not continue into future years unless the government 
identifies specific grant to distributed 
  
The tax base for all parishes will be included in the Council Tax Setting report, to be 
approved at Full Council in February 2014. 
 

7. Other Budget Assumptions 
 
The budget estimates and Medium Term Plan cover the period 2014-15 to 2018-19. 
Over this timescale it is important that we make realistic assumptions as to how costs 
rise or fall. This section details the key assumptions made. 
The key assumptions used are: 

o Revenue budgets will be used to deliver services during the year for which they 
are approved. 

o There will be allowance for unavoidable growth on services (i.e. new statutory 
obligations and contractual inflation) but will not allow for any increase for 
general inflation. 

o Estimates are prepared on the understanding that appropriate service budgets 
were produced for the previous year (2013-14) which will then be adjusted to 
reflect the changing financial circumstances that the public sector is required to 
prepare for. 

o Where service delivery is dependent on a specific grant we will only assume 
continuation of the grant and expenditure where such notification has been 
received. 

o Council tax levels are estimated to reduce by approximately 0.35% (2014/15), 
0.40% (2015/16) and 0%  per annum over the 5 year Medium Term Plan   

o Details on the grant settlement and assumptions made are shown in section 4. 
 

The key assumptions made for the setting of these budget estimates, which influence 
the five year financial plan are as follows: 
 
 

 2013/14 2014/15 2015-16 2016-17 2017/18 2018/19 

RPI 2.6% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 

National pay increase 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 

Staffing Salary Level 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 

Pension contribution rate 24.8% 25.8% 25.8% 25.8% 25.8% 25.8% 

Page 27



 - 10 - 

Tax base 24,912 25,098 25,148 25,198 25,249 25,300 

Council Tax 156.15 155.61 154.98 154.98 154.98 154.98 

 

8. Future Developments 
 
The Universal Credit is due to be implemented shortly as part of a package of 
measures under the Welfare Reform Act. It will change the way that benefits (including 
Housing Benefits delivered by local authorities) are administered. It is not yet clear 
what role local authorities will have in this administration, what the financial 
consequences or the timing of the changes will be.  
 

Planned changes to the UK state pension scheme are likely to have the effect of 
increasing National Insurance contributions for employers from 2016-17 and additional 
budgetary provision will be required once the scheme details are known.  This will 
increase employment costs and is likely to add pressure to contracts and supplies and 
services, adversely affecting future year’s efficiency requirements. 
 

9. Strategy, Aspirations and Forward Projections 
 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is shown below: 

1) To manage a budget process that will make progress in re-directing and 
focusing the budget on corporate priorities and in doing so, recognise the 
intrinsic link between this strategy, the Capital Strategy, and the Treasury 
Management Strategy. 

2) Adopt a corporate approach to budget preparation and continue to provide 
strong timely budget control. 

3) Use sound modern financial systems procedures and principles and promote 
electronic record keeping and approval processes.  Ensure financial 
performance reporting remains integrated with financial reporting and business 
planning. 

4) Ensure there is a rigorous scrutiny of the financial planning process and work 
towards a more effective consultation process to engage the public and 
stakeholders. 

5) Maintain balances and reserves that will provide for known risks and liabilities 
and provide capacity for managing peaks in expenditure. 

6) Operate strategies on capital and external funding that supports the Council’s 
corporate objectives. 

7) Undertake a risk assessment of material items of income and expenditure and 
report the risks to Members as part of the budget setting process (see section 
14). 

8) Manage and use our resources to deliver value for money and better 
sustainable outcomes and efficiencies for local people. 

9) Set realistic targets for trading accounts and if services fail to achieve these 
they will be subject to a more fundamental review. 

10) Aim for a minimum balance on the Collection Fund. 
11) Prepare robust and realistic income and resource requirement plans for the 

next five years. 
12) Promote take up of benefits and reliefs. 
13) Maximise income collection. 

Page 28



 - 11 - 

14) Recognise our role in the community throughout and beyond the period of 
economic hardship by providing assistance to individuals, groups and 
businesses.  

 
A key aspect of the Council’s strategy to cope with the financial challenges that it 
faces is the creation of Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd, (CPBS), a 
company jointly owned with East Lindsey District Council. This innovative 
development is designed to deliver greater efficiency in the provision of back office 
services. The company is established to provide Information Technology, Human 
Resources, Financial Services, Customer Services and Revenues and Benefits. It is 
projected to make savings totalling over £30m over a10 year period, with South 
Holland’s share being in excess of £10m. 
These strategies will be achieved through the working practices set by the relevant 
departments.  The effectiveness of these strategies and the underlying principles can 
be monitored by key outputs such as: 
 

o Annual audit letter 
o Financial plan 
o Governance and Audit Committee reports 
o Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
o Grants returns submitted to deadlines 
o Governance and performance reports 

 
In 2014-15 and beyond a funding gap has been identified which will need to 
be addressed in order to present a balanced and sustainable budget and medium 
term plan. The graph below shows the cost pressures increasing and government 
funding reducing over the medium term.  

 

9,400

9,900

10,400

10,900

11,400

11,900

12,400

12,900

13,400

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19

Net Cost

of

Services

Total

Income

 
  
A programme of efficiencies and income generation is being finalised to address the 
authority’s immediate funding needs to ensure that the Council has a balanced budget 
in 2014-15. The authority is also initiating a business support services cultural and 
functional transformation project to produce a draft transformation plan which will 
address the longer term funding gap.  

The two phases are linked, but the transformation agenda will take longer to sort out 
and considerably longer to implement. The aim is to have an efficiency programme 

Page 29



 - 12 - 

ready for inclusion in the 2014-15 final budgets which will be presented for approval in 
February 2014. 

 
A major source of income to the Council is provided by Council Tax. This strategy 
builds in a reduction of 0.29% (2013/14) 0.35% (2014/15) 0.40% (2015/16) and a 
neutral position for future years in the district’s council tax.  
 
 
 
 
 

10. 2013-14 Outturn 
 
An assessment of the 2013-14 outturn will inform the reliance that can be placed on 
the baseline used for the 2014-15 estimates. At September 2013 (Quarter Two) an 
estimated underspend of £150,000 has been forecast for 2013-14. Whilst a number of 
budget pressures and savings have been identified, Budget Managers will continue to 
review the financial performance of their services to identify further in-year savings to 
reduce the potential of an overspend at the year end. A budget challenge has already 
taken place during 2013-14.  In preparing the budgets for 2014-15 services have 
reflected the on-going pressures and savings in their new budget estimates.   
 
11. Budget Requirement and Forward Estimates 
 
Outline estimates through to 2018-19 are shown in Appendix B. In compiling these 
figures we have followed the assumptions shown in sections 4 and 7 of this report and 
made specific adjustments to service budgets as and where budget holders have 
advised of a change over the medium term. 
 
It should be recognised that that budget managers will be closely reviewing their 
budgets again in order to balance its budget for 2014-15. In addition significant 
reductions in expenditure or increases in income will be required from 2015-16 
onwards, to take account of the reductions in Government funding. 
 
An efficiency and  transformation programme is currently being developed and it is 
expected estimated outcomes will be taken into account for the final budget report in 
order to reduce the funding gap and create a sustainable budget.  
 
 Work has been carried out to challenge budget costs in order to reduce both in-year 
and on-going base budgets without impacting on core service levels. However the 
Council will experience increasing inflationary pressures on core budgets and 
continuing reductions in government grant funding, as well as further uncertainty on 
business rates retention. These factors will require the Council to consider policy 
changes if it is to rise to the challenge and balance its budgets in the short and 
medium term. A number of potential schemes to generate savings and increased 
income have been explored at officer level. However these ideas and others have 
been examined during budget consultation and beyond to determine Council’s appetite 
to introduce such changes. Areas to consider which currently have a high level of 
spend or will require a greater review to reduce costs and provide services differently  

• Consideration of fees and income policies (including Internal review and 
benchmarking exercise) 

• Review of public owned assets including a strategic asset plan review 

Page 30



 - 13 - 

• Grants Review  

• Alternative management models for key assets such as South Holland Centre 
and Ayscoughee Hall and gardens  

• Further shared service opportunities 
 
Spalding Special Expenses are a separate charge to the residents of Spalding for 
services provided in their town and are charged as a supplement to the main council 
tax. The Spalding Special Expenses budget for 2014-15 is estimated at £188,140 
(2013-14 £186,830). The tax base used for 2014-15 is 8,082 (2013-14 8,022). A 
proportion of the Council Tax Support Grant Funding has been allocated to finance 
Spalding Special expenses in order to maintain the current Band D charge at (2013-14 
£23.28) £23.28.  
 
Detailed estimates are shown at Appendix C.  
 

The Council’s 2014-15 budget and forward estimates include amounts for Internal 
Drainage Boards (IDB). These are levies charged to the authority over which the council 
has little control and form part of the revenue budget. For 2014-15 £2.241m (2013/14 
£2.185m) has been included. The Council will continue to lobby to have these levies 
removed from its precept, as it believes that the IDB’s should be precepting authorities in 
their own right, and should not impact on the finances of district councils. 
. 
. 
12. Fees and Charges 
 
Income from fees and charges is an important source of revenue income for the 
Council.  Charges have a central role to play in service delivery, raising income, 
controlling access, responding to competition, funding investment and affecting public 
behaviour. 
 
As part of our overall income strategy we will seek to: 

o Maximise the return from the Council’s asset holdings and continue to attract 
rental income by optimising the usage of office space at Priory Road. 

o Ensure that the yield from fees and charges matches the increase in base 
budget for services that levy fees and charges, otherwise the shortfall will fall 
upon the Council Tax payer 

o Annually review fees and charges for discretionary services 
o Ensure that statutory charges are implemented 
o Monitor compliance with the corporate charging policy and corporate debt policy 
o Set targets for income collection and level of arrears and monitor performance 

against these targets. 
o Treat windfall income as a corporate resource 
o Use enforcement remedies effectively 
o Seek to minimise benefit subsidy losses 
 

 
Fees and charges have been reviewed and updated where necessary. Demand for 
services has also been reviewed and changes in demand have also been reflected in 
the budgeted level of fees and charges income. Appendix H outlines the proposals for 
fees and charges. 
 

Page 31



 - 14 - 

In total £3.228m (2013-14 £3.177m) is due from fees and charges in the 2014-15 
budget. The chart below shows the main categories of budgeted fee income in 2014-
15 (and 2013-14 for comparison).  

Fees & Charges Comparisons 2013/14 & 2014/15

£0

£100

£200

£300

£400

£500

£600

£700

£800

Car Parking Licensing South Holland

Centre and TIC

Building Control Development

Control

Markets Land Charges Recycling

Income

Service

E
s
ti

m
a

te
 £

'0
0

0

Estimate 13/14

Estimate 14/15

 
 

13. Reserves and Balances 
 
In order to comply with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
Council undertakes a review of the level of reserves as part of the annual budget 
preparation.  It is therefore a target of our medium term plan that a review of reserves 
is carried out and reported to Cabinet for consideration.  The review includes analysis 
of current and future risk assessments, including an assessment of risk registers, 
pressures upon services, inflation and interest rates and any underwriting 
arrangements. 
 
Appendix D outlines the position statement on reserve balances.  The proposed 
budget does not require any long term support from reserve balances, however the 
challenging economic environment has required us to undertake a robust sensitivity 
analysis should these events require us to draw on balances.  Whilst it is apparent 
these risks could be financially significant, SHDC reserves are at a reasonable level.  
Moving forward the General Fund balance stands at £2.034 which is believed to be 
prudent for the Council at this time.  
 
We also have a Council Tax reserve with a current balance of £3.868m at 31 March 
2015, taking into account the New Homes Bonus for 2014-15 of £949,000 and an 
estimated additional £16,000. This reserve can be used to smooth out fluctuations and 
pressures on the General Fund resulting from new Government policies shifting the 
risk of Business Rate retention and Council Tax benefits to local authorities.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 - 15 - 

 

The tables below give a summary of reserve movements: 
 

General Fund 
Working Balance 

13-14 
£’000 

14-15 
£’000 

15-16 
£’000 

16-17 
£’000 

17-18 
£’000 

18-19 
£’000 

Brought forward 2,034 2,034 2,034 2,034 2,034 2,034 

In - - - - - - 

Out - - - - - - 

Carried forward 2,034 2,034 2,034 2,034 2,034 2,034 
 

General Fund 
Specific Reserves 

13-14 
£’000 

14-15 
£’000 

15-16 
£’000 

16-17 
£’000 

17-18 
£’000 

18-19 
£’000 

Brought forward 5,008 5,481 6,276 6,609 7,540 8,255 

In  1,233 1,132 904 1,121 1,024 802 

Out (760) (337) (571) (190) (309) (104) 

Carried forward 5,481 6,276 6,609 7,540 8,255 8,953 

 

These are the observations from the review of reserves for the 2014-15 budget: 
 

o The general fund balance at 1 April 2013 is £2,034m. This represents 
approximately 17.0% of the Council’s net budget requirement and is adequate 
for the Council’s purposes. 

o Transfers to Reserves include an annual contribution of £136,000 to the 
Replacement and Refurbishment Reserve to assist the Council in maintaining 
its asset base. For 2014-15 contributions from the repairs and renewals reserve 
stand at £218,000, which is subject to review.  

o The Planning Reserve is to be used to deliver the Local Development 
Framework.   

o All New Homes Bonus Scheme grant over the period of the Medium Term 
Financial Plan has been taken into the Council Tax Reserve.  

o £31,000 is shown as a contribution to the Organisational Development reserve, 
for the remainder of the Waste incentive grant in 2014-15, followed by a 
contribution from reserves for £224,000 in 2015-16 in accordance with the grant 
scheme plan. 

 

In setting the level of General Balances, consideration has been given to the adequacy 
of financial control, the overall financial position, medium-term financial plans and the 
strategic, operational and financial risks facing the Council. Following this review, it is 
proposed that the General Fund remains set at a minimum level of £2 m. 
 

14. Risk, Key Issues, Sensitivity and Monitoring 
 
The Council must set a budget which is a realistic statement of its estimated income 
and expenditure for the coming year, based upon information currently available.  The 
Council has a duty to take into account the demand for its services and the effect on 
council tax payers of meeting those demands at varying levels of services. Given the 
good management practices and sound financial and performance monitoring 
delivered in the past, the Council has the platform and expertise to deliver a balanced 
budget.    
 
 

The following table details the key risks and issues identified and how we intend to 
treat them. 

Page 33



 - 16 - 

 
 
Risk 

Likeli-
hood 

 
Impact 

 
Action 

Reduced public sector funding 
from Central Government 

High High Keep up to date with developments 
and make prudent budget 
assumptions.  

Low income levels from fees and 
charges 

Medium Medium Revise spending plans 

Continuation of low interest rates High High Market advice and forecasting.  
Mitigation by diversification 

Changes to CTB grant will reduce 
Central government funding and 
will impact Council Tax base. 
Increased caseload adds further 
cost pressure. 

High High Monitor developments & develop local 
scheme to meet reduced Central 
Gov’t funding 

Business rates retention 
proposals leave Council exposed 
to economic downturn 

High High Monitor developments & set aside 
reserves to help with potential initial 
pressures and fluctuations 

Pension fund deficit Medium Medium Strong links with LCC pension fund 
Central Gov’t measures to reduce 
public sector pension deficit 

Additional bad debts as a result 
of economic circumstances 

Medium Medium Pro-active debt management and pre-
pay fee policies 

Increased maintenance costs of 
ageing physical assets 

Medium Medium Asset management plan.  Pro-active 
rather than reactive maintenance 
programme 

Inflation rises by more than 
budgeted projections 

Medium Medium Budget assumptions kept up to date 
with most recent projections 

Diminishing capital resources will 
mean that borrowing will be 
required at some point in the 
future 

High High Continue to closely monitor and 
prioritise the Council's Capital 
Financing Requirement. A radical 
review of the capital programme and 
wish list will be undertaken to inform 
the final budget. Utilise S106 funding 
and revenue reserves where 
appropriate 

Compass Point Business 
Services may be unable to 
deliver an effective service within 
the agreed reduced contract 
price. 

Low Medium Reviewing Service Level Agreements, 
activity levels and service priorities 

Recycling income is at risk while 
contract negotiations take place 

High High The MTFS has assumed this income 
is not continuing at current budgeted 
levels (2013-14). This will be revised 
for the final paper as soon as new 
arrangements are clear. 

Recycling credit income High High Potentially recycling credit income 
may cease from LCC in the next three 
years. Current levels of income have 
been assumed in the five year plan. 
Income levels to be assessed over 
the medium term. 

Implications of recently 
announced future State Pension 
changes.  

High Medium Until more details have been 
announced there is no provision in the 
Medium Term Financial Plan. 
Employees are automatically enrolled 

Page 34



 - 17 - 

for the pension scheme and would 
need to opt out. Potentially an impact 
on a part payment and part benefit 
scheme. Impact to be assessed. 

Court Income High Low Court income projections are 
considerably increased following 
welfare reforms. However the budget 
has not been increased due to 
concerns over collectability of this 
income and will be monitored closely 
and an impairment assessment made 
for the final budget. 

Housing Benefit Overpayments Medium High The level of Housing Benefit 
Overpayments and their recoverability 
needs to be monitored closely 
through the year in order to ensure 
budget levels are appropriate.  

Universal Credit   High Medium The implementation of the Universal 
credit may impact on the General 
Fund both in terms of running costs 
for the Benefits service and additional 
demand on other council services. 
This will be closely monitored. 

    

 
 
 
 

15. Consultation, Timetable and Links to Other Strategies 
 
The initial draft budget will be put out to consultation on the website and invited 
commentary from council tax payers, business rate payers and key stakeholders. 
 
It is important to have clear and agreed timetables for the budget process so that 
statutory requirements are met.  Each year a timetable will be agreed with Corporate 
Management Team prior to the start of the process (i.e. around May each year). 
 
The Council has adopted a corporate risk management strategy and financial risk 
management is integrated into the Council’s overall management and decision making 
processes. This ensures a robust and well integrated risk management programme, 
which will help the Council to identify and manage key strategic risks facing it, in 
pursuit of its corporate objectives. 
 
A Performance Framework has been developed to manage delivery of the new 
priorities described in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2011-2015. The annual business 
planning process will run alongside the budget setting process to ensure an integrated 
approach of performance and finance. 
 
 
 

16. Capital Strategy and General Fund Capital Estimates 
 
The Council’s Capital Strategy (Appendix F) focuses on the core principles that 
underpin capital investment. 
 

Page 35



 - 18 - 

The development of a robust five year capital programme is constrained by the level of 
available resources that the Council has at its disposal.  
 
The existing capital programme (Appendix E) has been amended to reflect revised 
profiling and scheme estimates. A high level summary and associated financing is 
shown below. 
 
The HRA capital requirements will be dealt with separately. 
 
 

Capital Programme by Department 13-14 
Original 
Budget 
£’000 

14-15 
 
 

£’000 

15-16 
 
 

£’000 

16-17 
 
 

£’000 

17-18 
 
 

£’000 

18-19 
 
 

£’000 

Assets and Property 44 - 10 - 100 - 

Community Development 89 49 39 29 19 - 

Environmental Services 559 2,112 20 - 170 - 

Environmental Health 91 - - - - - 

Economic Development - - 132 - - - 

Housing 1,087 427 427 427 427 427 

ICT  67 80 80 80 80 80 

Total 1,937 2,668 708 536 796 507 

 
 
 

Financing 13-14 
Original 
Budget 
£’000 

14-15 
 
 

£’000 

15-16 
 
 

£’000 

16-17 
 
 

£’000 

17-18 
 
 

£’000 

18-19 
 
 

£’000 

Borrowing - 1,512 - - 130  

Capital Receipts 25 - 132 - -  

Capital Grants and Contributions 1,447 887 317 317 317 317 

Replacement and Refurbishment 
Reserve 

 
120 

 
30 

 
10 

 
- 

 
140 

 
 

Organisational Development 
Reserve 

157 - - - -  

Direct Revenue Financing 188 49 39 29 19  

Unfinanced - 190 210 190 190 190 

Total 1,937 2,668 708 536 796 507 

 

As part of the 2014-15 budget process Service Managers were asked to only submit a 
new bid for essential schemes to be incorporated into the Capital Programme over the 
next five years. Each scheme is supported by a capital bid form, formulated where 
appropriate after the consideration of options. The cash flow implications of all 
schemes and the impact on revenue need careful consideration before new schemes 
are incorporated within the capital programme. The joint preparation of both a capital 
and revenue budget should ensure a sustainable position for the Council.  
 

Due to the constraints around financing, some schemes have yet to be included in the 
Capital Programme that were submitted as essential and desirables schemes during 
last years estimate process. A radical review of the approved programme and 
proposed projects will be carried out before the final programme is presented for 
approval, as resources are not sufficient to deliver all schemes presented.  
 

Page 36



 - 19 - 

The HRA capital programme will be dealt with separately with the HRA budget and 
Business Plan. 
 

17. Treasury Management Policy and Investment Strategy 
 
The Treasury Management Policy and Investment Strategy (Appendix G) pulls 
together the decisions of capital investment, use of reserves, our cash flow and 
revenue budgets.  
 
The Treasury Management Strategy covers two main areas: 

• Capital plans and associated Capital Prudential Indicators 
• Treasury management issues including borrowing and investment strategies 

and associated Treasury Prudential Indicators. 
 
No major changes are proposed to the Treasury Management Policy and Investment 
Strategy which continues the prudent approach to investment in light of the current 
economic climate. 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft General Fund Summary Appendix B

Area 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Related Expenditure 6,290 6,396 6,472 6,387 6,443 6,493

Premises Related Expenditure 973 1,063 1,007 1,005 1,017 1,033

Transport Related Expenditure 1,357 1,040 930 927 930 933

Supplies & Services 2,975 3,380 3,200 3,060 3,064 3,064

Drainage Board Levies 2,185 2,241 2,298 2,356 2,404 2,452

Parish Precepts 562 573 585 596 608 608

Third party Payments 2,837 2,768 2,726 2,684 2,642 2,600

Transfer Payments 18,932 19,806 19,430 19,221 19,221 19,221

Depreciation and Impairment Losses 697            973            1,271         1,271         1,271         1,271

Grant payment to parishes 77              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                

Income  (24,035)  (25,430)  (24,433)  (24,102)  (24,102)  (24,102) 

Efficiences Required -                  (498)  (1,746)  (2,838)  (3,461) (3,722)

COUNCIL SUB-TOTAL 12,850 12,312 11,740 10,567 10,037 9,851

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Expenditure 465            79              49              29              159            159

Capital Charges Contra Entry  (882)  (1,158)  (1,455)  (1,455)  (1,455)  (1,455) 

Minimum Revenue Provision 17              16              232            231            230            230

Interest on borrowing 1                34              34              34              7                7

Contributions to Reserves 1,007         1,132         904            1,121         1,024         802

Contributions From Reserves  (668)  (338)  (571)  (190)  (309) (104)

NET COST OF SERVICES 12,790 12,077 10,933 10,337 9,693 9,490

Financing

Local Government Settlement  (7,316)  (6,370)  (5,882)  (5,471)  (5,151)  (5,151) 

Increase/(Reduction) in RSG 34              481            808            1,055         1055

Community Right to bid and challenge (17)

Transitional Grant Scheme  (18) -                 -                 -                 -                 -                

Efficiency Support for Services in Sparse Areas Grant  (16) -                 -                 -                 -                 -                

New Homes Bonus Grant  (762)  (949)  (1,136)  (1,323)  (1,155)  (944) 

New Homes Bonus Grant revised CSR  (16) 368 338 267 267

Council Tax Freeze Grant (39) (94) (94) -                 -                 -                

Spalding Special Expenses (187) (187) (188) (188) (188) (188)

Town & Parish Councils (562) (573) (585) (596) (608) (608)

Share of Collection Fund Deficit -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                

SOUTH HOLLAND PRECEPT REQUIREMENT 3,890 3,905 3,897 3,905 3,913 3,921

TAX BASE 24,912 25,098 25,148 25,198 25,249 25,300

SOUTH HOLLAND BAND D COUNCIL TAX 156.15 155.61 154.98 154.98 154.98 154.98

PERCENTAGE DECREASE (0.29) (0.35) (0.40) 0 0 0

P
age 39



P
age 40

T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
 

APPENDIX C 
 Spalding Special Expenses Account 

 
  2013-14 

Budget 
 
£ 

2014-15 
Budget 

 
£ 

Variance 
 
 
£ 

Spalding Cemetery   45,800 45,900 100 

Spalding Allotments  1,860 1,800 (60) 

Playing Fields at:    

      Ayscoughfee (excluding gardens)  11,640 11,710 70 

      Halley Stewart  28,770 30,200 1,430 

      Thames Road  13,470 11,980 (1,490) 

      Fulney Road  10,320 10,320 - 

      Monkshouse Lane  35,030 37,310 2,280 

Contribution to Voluntary Car Scheme 8,500 8,500 - 

Christmas Decorations  13,220 13,200     (20) 
Contrib. St Mary & St Nicolas Parish 
Church 750 750 - 

Administrative Support 4,640 4,650 10 

Bus Shelter maintenance 370 370 - 

Play Areas 1,000 1,000 - 

Spalding Town Centre Promotion  2,930 2,000 (930) 

Crime prevention  7,700 7,700 - 

Chairman’s Special Events 750 750 - 

Contribution to Reserves 23,080  23,080 

Share of council Tax Reform Grant (23,000)  (23,000) 

Total Expenditure 186,830 188,140 (1,310) 

Tax Base 8,022 8,082  

Council Tax Band D Equivalent 23.28 23.28  

Council Tax increase (decrease) % - -  

Reserve Account (Rounded)    

Balance at 1 April (93,740) (116,820)  

Contribution to Reserve (23,080)   

Balance at 31March (116,820) (116,820)  

Earmarked for crime prevention 4,380 4,380  

Eamarked for Christmas Decorations 21,460 21,460  
Agreed minimum balance 5% of 
expenditure for contingency 9,340 9,410  

Earmarked for Capital Expenditure  23,080  

Available Balance (81,640) (58,490)  

 

Page 41



  
 

SPALDING SPECIAL EXPENSES ACCOUNT- FIVE YEAR FORECAST  

        APPENDIX C 

              

5 year Forward Estimates Spalding Special Expenses       

  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

  £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Employee Costs 9,790 11,400 11,510 11,800 12,100 12,400 

Premises Costs 174,010 174,730 174,740 174,810 174,860 174,920 

Transport Expenses 200 100 100 100 100 100 

Supplies and Services 22,900 22,020 23,910 25,510 27,080 28,600 

Third party payments 6,700 6,700 6,600 6,500 6,400 6,300 

Support Services 6,480 6,490 6,500 6,660 6,830 7,000 

Capital Charges 18,050  18,000  18,000  18,000  18,000  18,000  

Contribution to reserve 23,080   0  0  0  0  

       

Efficiencies Required   (840) (1,440) (1,980) (2,460) 

       

Total Expenditure 261,210 239,450 240,520 241,940 243,390 244,860 

       

Total Income (51,380) (51,300) (52,330) (53,380) (54,450) (55,540) 

       

Share of Council Tax Reform Grant (23,000)  0 0 0 0 

NET COST OF SERVICES 186,830 188,140 188,190 188,560 188,940 189,320 

       

TO BE RAISED FROM COUNCIL TAX 186,830  188,140  188,190  188,560  188,940  189,320  

TAXBASE 8,022 8,082 8,084 8,100 8,116 8,132 

BAND D COUNCIL TAX  £             23.28   £             23.28  
 £          

23.28  
 £          

23.28  
 £         

23.28  
 £         

23.28  

       

PREVIOUS YEAR COUNCIL TAX  £             23.28   £             23.28  
 £         

23.28  
 £          

23.28  
 £         

23.28  
 £         

23.28  

       

PERCENTAGE INCREASE 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

 

P
age 42



Appendix D

Reserve 31/03/13 IN OUT 31/03/14 IN OUT 31/03/15 IN OUT 31/03/16 IN OUT 31/03/17 IN OUT 31/03/18 IN OUT 31/03/19

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund Working Balance 2,034        -              -              2,034        -                -              2,034        -              -              2,034        -              -              2,034        -              -              2,034        -              -                 2,034        

Specific Reserves

Affordable Housing 118            -              -              118            -                -              118            -              -              118            -              -              118            -              -              118            -              -                 118           

Capital Reserve 562            -              -              562            -                -              562            -              -              562            -              -              562            -              -              562            -              -                 562           

Climate Change Reserve 44              -              (20) 24              -                -              24              -              -              24              -              -              24              -              -              24              -              -                 24             

Community Cohesion Reserve 69              -              (25) 44              -                (25) 19              -              (19) -                 -              -              -                 -              -              -                 -              -                 -                

Council Tax Reserve 2,078        888         (62) 2,904        965           -              3,869        768         (60) 4,577        985         -              5,562        888         -              6,450        665         -                 7,115        

Insurance Reserve 257            -              (20) 237            -                (20) 217            -              (20) 197            -              (20) 177            -              (20) 157            -              (20) 137           

Organisational Development Reserve 1,094        186         (321) 960            31             -              991            -              (224) 767            -              -              767            -              -              767            -              -                 767           

Planning Reserve 313            -              (82) 231            -                (75) 156            -              (60) 96              -              (47) 49              -              (50) 1-                -              -                 1-               

Replacement and Refurbishment Reserve 358            136         (231) 264            136           (217) 183            136         (188) 131            136         (123) 144            136         (239) 41              137         (84) 94             

Section 106 Reserve 11              -              -              11              -                -              11              -              -              11              -              -              11              -              -              11              -              -                 11             

Spalding Special Expenses 94              23            -              117            -                -              117            -              -              117            -              -              117            -              -              117            -              -                 117           

Emergency Planning Reserve 10              -              -              10              -                -              10              -              -              10              -              -              10              -              -              10              -              -                 10             

Total Specific Reserves 5,008        1,233      (760) 5,481        1,132        (337) 6,276 904 (571) 6,609 1,121 (190) 7,540 1,024 (309) 8,255 802 (104) 8,953

Total General Fund Reserves 7,042        1,233      (760) 7,515        1,132        (337) 8,310        904         (571) 8,643        1,121      (190) 9,574        1,024      (309) 10,289      802         (104) 10,987      

General Fund Reserve Statement - 2014-15 Draft Budget 

P
age 43



P
age 44

T
his page is intentionally left blank



2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Total

Scheme Description

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Asset and Property

Ayscoughfee Museum Storage Heater

Priory Road - Council Chamber Air Conditioning

West Marsh Road Depot New Roller Shutters 10 10

Wardentree Lane Industrial Units- re roofing 30 30

Fleet Road, Holbeach Industrial Units- re roofing 30 30

Railway Lane, Sutton Bridge Industrial Units - re roofing 40 40

Leisure Contractor Pool & Hall Works 49 39 29 19 137
49 49 29 119 247

Environmental

Resurface Car Park West Street North Long Sutton 30 30

Winfrey Avenue Car Park Resurfacing (alongside Bus Stn) 20 20

Refuse Freight 2,082 130 2,212

Sheep Market Public Conveniences 40 40
2,112 20 170 2,302

Economic Development

Pinnacle Close Industrial Units, Crease Drove 132 132

132 132

Housing

Disabled Facilities Grants - Private 352 352 352 352 352 1,760

Decent Home Grants/Loans 75 75 75 75 75 375

427 427 427 427 427 2,135

ICT

ICT Strategy (80% General Fund) 80 80 80 80 80 400

80 80 80 80 80 400
GRAND TOTAL 2,668 708 536 796 507 5,216

FUNDING

Capital Receipts 132 132

External Funding 570 570

S.106 Funding

SCG - DFGs 242 242 242 242 242 1,210

Regional Housing Grant 75 75 75 75 75 375

Replacement & Refurbishment Reserve 30 10 140 180

Specific Reserves

Direct Revenue Funding 49 39 29 19 137

Unfunded 190 210 190 190 190 970

GF Borrowing 1,512 130 1,642
Total Funding 2,668 708 536 796 507 5,216

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 TO 2018/19

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 

 

 

1.0  INTRODUCTION 

In line with best practice South Holland District Council (SHDC) renews its 
Capital Strategy on an annual basis, ensuring the strategy maintains a strong 
and current link to our Corporate Plan.   
 
For the benefit of the reader the strategy has 3 key parts; 

• Introduction 

• Core Strategy 

• Strategic Context  
 
Please have a read of our strategy, we hope it provides you with the 
understanding you seek with regards to how we will manage the increasingly 
limited capital resources at our disposal to deliver our priorities.  
 
The Strategy focuses on core principles that underpin capital investment. It 
gives a position statement with regards to capital expenditure and the 
resources available in terms of funding. The Strategy projects where the 
Council will be in five years’ time and importantly how it intends to get there.  It 
also includes some of the key issues and risks that may impact on the delivery 
of the Capital Investment Strategy, and that the correct governance 
framework is in place to ensure the Strategy is delivered. 
 

2.0 CORE STRATEGY 

 

The core strategy explains how we will manage our capital resources to 
deliver our proposed capital programme.  
 
From 2014-15 to 2018-19 the Council is likely to need investment to advance 
the priorities stated within its Corporate Plan, whilst recognising the reductions 
in funding as a result of the situation in the wider economy. In order to do this 
we will need to deliver efficiencies, seek additional funding, and periodically 
review both the consumption of our capital resources and our stated priorities. 
With fewer resources we may well be unable to maintain assets’ obligatory 
long term maintenance needs. We will manage this through four core 
principles, as set out in Appendix 1.  

3.0 STRATEGIC CONTEXT 

3.1 Strategic Links 

This strategy is a high level summary of SHDC’s approach to capital 
investment in the future of the district. It is driven by the Corporate Plan which 
lays out South Holland’s visions and priorities for the period 2011-2015. The 
Corporate Plan is supported by Service Business Plans. The delivery of our 

Page 47



 2 

priorities is closely monitored in accordance with the council’s performance 
framework.  
 
Capital projects are required to demonstrate a clear link with the Council’s 
corporate objectives.   
 
3.2 Capital Resources 

Balance of Funding 
 
The Council needs to consider how its future capital requirements can be 
financed. It also needs to consider ways of innovation that maximise 
resources, especially given the expected further reductions in available 
funding over the coming years. The Council is required to have regard to the 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, to demonstrate that 
proposals are affordable, sustainable and prudent. 

 
A brief description of the resources available to fund capital expenditure is 
given in Appendix 2. 
 
Current Funding Situation 
 
The medium term financial plan details the General Fund Capital Programme 
and financing over the next 5 years, with the HRA capital spending plans 
being contained within its 30 year  Business Plan. 
 
A summary of the combined General Fund and HRA Capital Programme is 
shown below: 
 

Resources 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Total Capital 
Programme 

10,131 7,648 7,814 8,225 8,091 

Finance applied (9,941) (7,438) (7,624) (7,905) (7,901) 

Financing to be 
identified 

 
190 

 
210 

 
190 

 
320 

 
190 

 
The Council has limited resources available for funding future programmes. 
By March 2019, the Capital Receipts reserve will stand at £600,000.  
£100,000 is already earmarked for the Housing Company and £233,000 for 
the Crowland Investment. At this stage we have been prudent and have not 
forecast any additional Capital Receipts over the medium term. 
 
S106 monies are available for capital schemes which meet the conditions of 
the individual planning agreements. There will be additional capital schemes 
brought into the Capital Programme which meet the S106 criteria and utilise 
this valuable resource.  
 
The Council has earmarked revenue reserves, which can be used for 
financing capital investment.  
 

Page 48



 3 

The Council will pro-actively seek out external grants and contributions to 
enhance the infrastructure and environment within the District. 
 
Currently borrowing rates are relatively low and the Council may need to 
consider this form of funding to expand the Capital Programme. 
 
The Council has sufficient resources to maintain its existing housing stock to 
decent homes plus standard and to invest in a programme of new build to 
meet social housing needs in its area,  
 
3.3       Disposals Policy 

 

The Council’s Asset Management Plan details the approach to asset disposal. 
As a principle, the Council releases funding from under utilised assets. Asset 
Management is a key component in the Council’s efficiency strategy. 

 
Generally the Council seeks to achieve ‘best consideration’ in disposing of 
assets, via a sale subject to competition. In certain circumstances it may be 
for less than best consideration, normally where the disposal will contribute to 
the achievement of the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or 
environmental well being of the whole or part of the area. 
 
3.4 Capital Expenditure, Risks and Opportunities 

 
The key issues facing the Council in relation to Capital expenditure are 
summarised in Appendix 3. 
 
 
3.5      Framework for managing and monitoring performance 
It is important, given the risks surrounding Capital Projects that the 
appropriate Governance framework is in place hence the following processes 
are in place: 

• The Capital Strategy itself to be presented annually alongside the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy at Council; 

 

• The overall Capital Programme and financing is subject to approval by 
the Cabinet and Council, with due diligence paid to the application of 
scarce capital resources; 

 

• Progress on the Capital Programme and its financing will be reported to 
Cabinet on a quarterly basis; 

 

• An option appraisal methodology for proposed new schemes is used 
which gives each bid a score, ensuring accordance with corporate 
objectives and best use of assets; 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 49



 4 

Appendix 1 
CORE PRINCIPLES 
 

Principle 1 – Managing the impact of investment decisions on our revenue budgets 

We will do this by, 

• Ensuring capital investment decisions do not place unnecessary additional 
pressure on Council Tax or Housing Rents 

• Promoting capital investment which allows “invest to save” outcomes 

Principle 2 – Optimise the availability of capital funding where that funding supports 
the priorities of SHDC 

We will do this by, 

• Disposing of surplus assets and using the proceeds to reinvest in our 
priorities 

 

• Developing effective working relationships with potential funders 
 

• Listening to and supporting effective partnering arrangements 
 

• Having clear policies for the consumption of our reserves 

Principle 3 – Ensure we have effective pre and post project appraisal 

We will do this by, 

• Ensuring a system of competition exists for project approval 
 

• Building into project appraisal recognition of environmental sustainability 
 

• Fully considering project risk 
 

• Carefully considering Value for Money and Efficiency of every project 
 

• Ensuring all projects are supported by an affordable business plan 
 

• Reviewing projects on completion taking account of any corporate learning 
opportunities 

Principle 4 – Performance manage our capital programme 

We will do this by, 

• Integrating the capital programme into our performance management 
framework 

 

• Ensuring our capital schemes use appropriate project management tools 
 

• Clearly defining responsibility for the delivery of the capital programme 
 

• Making sure our assets perform at an optimal level through effective ongoing 
asset management, consistent with levels of investment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



 5 

Appendix 2 
FUNDING SOURCES 
 

Capital Resource Implications with regards to future funding 

Capital Receipt The Council holds a limited number of valuable assets that 
could be transferred into cash.  The Council needs to balance 
cost of maintaining an asset with potential benefits arising 
from disposal, in light of delivering Corporate Objectives, and 
this is therefore politically sensitive. 
 

Section 106 – 
Planning Obligations 

The Council has powers under Section 106 to provide for 
infrastructure and facilities to support the local community 
alongside planning and development projects.  In some cases 
the Council is able to receive cash amounts in lieu of 
developers providing for these requirements directly.   
 

External grants and 
contributions 

The partnership approach to service delivery is a core belief of 
the Council. Through its services, partnership working, 
supportive funding and innovation, the Council will seek to 
attract investment into the District.  The Council is also in 
receipt of Government Grant to support its Disabled Facility 
Grant programme and is heavily reliant upon this to help it 
deliver these mandatory grants for which there is a significant 
demand from its residents. 
 

Revenue 
Contributions 

The Medium Term Financial Strategy and Plan, currently 
assumes an annual (and reducing) revenue contribution in 
support of General Fund capital expenditure. The affordability 
of any revenue contribution needs to be considered in context 
of balancing the General Fund budget.  
 
The 30 year HRA business plan indicates that annual revenue 
surpluses will be generated which will allow the current 
programme for major repairs to housing assets to be fully 
funded and provides the opportunity for further capital 
investment. 
 

Balances and 
Reserves 

SHDC holds both general and specific reserves, earmarked to 
support specific service areas. The value of reserves available 
to support capital expenditure is limited and set to reduce in 
the coming years. 
 
The HRA business plan shows that after funding the capital 
programme, significant balances will accrue. These will 
generate investment income for the HRA. Future investment 
plans may draw on these balances and the business plan will 
need to reflect the impact on the revenue account. This 
includes the Major Repairs Reserve 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 6 

Borrowing The Council currently holds £67.456m of Long Term HRA 
debt following the introduction of the HRA Self-Financing 
regime in 2012. The new regime also enables the Council to 
borrow an additional £4.4m to finance capital schemes or 
repay debt at some point in the future. 
 
As non borrowing capital resources diminish, if it is to maintain 
a General Fund capital programme, the Council will need to 
resort to borrowing. Current projections expect this to 
commence during 2014-15 to support the replacement of the 
refuse fleet. 
 
The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy includes a 
borrowing strategy and demonstrates the affordability and 
sustainability of any borrowing on the Medium Term Financial 
Plan, through the application of the Prudential Code.  
 
The Council will ensure its Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP) policy reflects the costs of borrowing included in the 
Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 52



 7 

Appendix 3 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME ISSUES 

 

Area Issue 

Asset 
Management 
Strategy 

The Council’s Asset Management Strategy supports its 
Capital Strategy. Annual reviews of assets aligned to the 
Strategy may identify surplus assets, which may in turn 
generate capital receipts for future capital investment. 
Expenditure pressures are similarly identified where assets 
need replacing or enhancing. 
The HRA Asset Management Strategy has been developed to 
complement the HRA Business Plan by formalising the 
Council’s approach to asset management in respect of its 
housing stock. 
 

Risk Management Each significant capital project will have its own risk log, 
including political, economic, legal and organisational as well 
as financial risks, which are recorded and managed 
throughout the life of the project. 
Monitoring and control of exempt input tax is essential for the 
council. Where exempt input tax exceeds the 5% de minimus 
limit the whole amount is irrecoverable and will represent an 
additional cost to the council.  Each capital investment will be 
closely reviewed to assess its VAT implications. 
 

Sustainability and 
Carbon & Waste 
Reduction 

A Sustainability Appraisal has been developed from the Local 
Development Framework. Key capital programmes will be 
evaluated against sustainability objectives. 
Where possible, consideration has been made in respect of 
carbon and waste reduction. This includes consideration of 
energy use, transport and fuel use, water use, production and 
disposal. The installation of solar panel at the Priory Road 
offices is an example of investment that will generate income 
to offset our carbon footprint over the next 25 years. 
 

Procurement The purchase of capital assets should be conducted in 
accordance with the Procurement Strategy, ensuring value for 
money, legality and sustainability at all times.  Contract 
standing orders and rules governing the disposal or write off 
of assets are contained in the Constitution which is 
consistently reviewed 
 

Housing There is increasing pressure with regards to the Council’s 
statutory obligation concerning Disabled Facilities Grants 
(DFGs). In recent years the Council has supplemented 
government funding with contributions from its own resources 
in order to maintain a manageable waiting list for these grants. 
The sustainability of this needs review in light of the Medium 
Term Financial Plan.  
Investment in the adaptation of its own Council Housing stock 
will also increase as part of the HRA business plan. 
A number of grants and loans are available to home owners 

Page 53



 8 

and tenants in South Holland to continue investment in the 
quality and energy efficiency of the district’s housing stock. 
Although currently supported from past receipts of external 
funding, the affordability of supporting these programmes over 
the longer term needs careful review. 
The Council has established South Holland Homes (a Local 
Housing Company) to develop affordable homes. The 
company’s future business plans will look to innovative 
approach to exploit and maximise resources available to it to 
deliver its aims. 
 

Partnership 
working 

The integration of our capital strategy with those who we seek 
to work with will be necessary to deliver the shared visions we 
hold.  Given the opportunities of the Localism Act and working 
with local communities and the voluntary sector, looking at 
joint asset use will be increasingly important. The 
arrangements with Compass Point Business Services and 
Breckland District Council, as well as the lease of Council 
Offices to several outside bodies are good examples of this.  
The Council will actively seek opportunities to transfer 
community assets to local groups or parish councils. 
 

Invest to save 
schemes and VFM 

Whilst there are revenue implications for investing in capital 
schemes, the Council is keen to invest in areas that result in 
long-term revenue savings and ‘invest to save’ schemes. The 
significant resources applied to capital expenditure require the 
adopted principles of value for money (VFM) to be at the heart 
of our capital strategy and returns on investment are one 
aspect of VFM. 
 

 

Page 54



  APPENDIX G 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy 

 

South Holland District Council 
 
2014/15 

Page 55



 2

INDEX 
 

1 INTRODUCTION        3 
 

1.1 Background        3 
1.2 Reporting requirements      3 
1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15    4 
1.4 Training        5 
1.5 Treasury management consultants     5 
 

2 THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2014/15 – 2016/17  5 
 

2.1 Capital expenditure       5 
2.2 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing 

Requirement)        6 
2.3 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement   7 
2.4 Core funds and expected investment balances    7 
2.5 Affordability prudential indicators     8 
2.6 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream    8 
2.7 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on 

council tax        8 
2.8 Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment 

decisions on housing rent levels     9 
2.9 HRA ratios        9 
 

3 BORROWING        9 
 

3.1 Current portfolio position      10 
3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity    10 
3.3 Prospects for interest rates      11 
3.4 Borrowing strategy       12 
3.5 Policy on borrowing in advance of need    14 
3.6 Debt rescheduling       15 
 

4 ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY     16 
 

4.1 Investment policy       16 
4.2 Creditworthiness policy       17 
4.3 Country limits        18 
4.4 Investment strategy       18 
4.5 Investment risk benchmarking      19 
4.6 End of year investment report      19 
 

5 APPENDICES        20 
 

1 Interest Rate Forecasts 2014 – 2016     21 
2 Economic Background       22 
3 Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and 

Counterparty Risk Management     27 
4 Approved Countries for Investments     31 
5 Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation    32 
6 The Treasury Management Role of the Section 151 Officer  33 

 
 

Page 56



 3

 

1.  Introduction 

1.1 Background 

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that 
cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury 
management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with 
cash being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk 
counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, 
providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return. 
 
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of 
the Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing 
need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that 
the Council can meet its capital spending obligations.  This management of longer 
term cash may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term 
cash flow surpluses.   On occasion any debt previously drawn may be 
restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  
 
CIPFA defines treasury management as: 
 
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks. ” 
 
The Council’s treasury function is undertaken by Compass Point Business 
Services (East Coast) Ltd (CPBS) on behalf of the Council. CPBS is 
responsible for the provision of: 
 

• Production of the annual treasury management strategy  

• Production of regular treasury management policy reports 

• Production of treasury management practices 

• Production of budget and budget variations relating to the treasury 
management function 

• Production of management information reports 

• Provision of adequate treasury management resources and skills, and 
effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management 
function 

• Arrangement of the appointment of external service providers. 
 
1.2 Reporting requirements 
 
The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and 
actuals.  

Page 57



 4

Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy (this report) - 
The first, and most important report covers: 

• the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

• a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital 
expenditure is charged to revenue over time); 

• the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings 
are to be organised) including treasury indicators; and  

• an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be 
managed). 

 
A Mid Year Treasury Management Report – This will update members with 
the progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as 
necessary, and whether the treasury strategy is meeting the strategy or 
whether any policies require revision. 
 
An Annual Treasury Report – This provides details of a selection of actual 
prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to 
the estimates within the strategy. 
 
Scrutiny 
The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to the Council.  This role is undertaken by the Governance and 
Audit Committee. 
 
1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15 
 
The strategy for 2014/15 covers two main areas: 
 
Capital Issues 

• the capital plans and the prudential indicators; 

• the MRP strategy. 

 

Treasury Management Issues 

• the current treasury position; 

• treasury indicators which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the 
Council; 

• prospects for interest rates; 

• the borrowing strategy; 

• policy on borrowing in advance of need; 

• debt rescheduling; 

• the investment strategy; 

• creditworthiness policy; and 

• policy on use of external service providers. 

 

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
CIPFA Prudential Code, the CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code and the CLG Investment Guidance. 

Page 58



 5

1.4 Training 

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny.  
Training is arranged as required. 

   

The training needs of CPBS treasury management officers are periodically 
reviewed.  

1.5 Treasury management consultants 

CPBS uses Capita Asset Services as external treasury management advisors for 
the Council. 
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the Council at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon external service providers.  
 
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and 
resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the 
methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and 
documented, and subjected to regular review.  

 

2. The Capital Prudential Indicators 2014/15 – 2016/17 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 
management activity.  The output of the capital expenditure plans are 
reflected in prudential indicators, which are designed to assist members’ 
overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. 

2.1 Capital expenditure 

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure 
plans, both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget 
cycle.  Members approve capital expenditure forecasts as part of the annual 
Budget report. 

Capital 
Expenditure 
£’000’s 

2012/13 
Actual 

2013/14 
Latest 

Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

General Fund 1,390 2,193 2,668 708 536 

HRA 3,421 7,649 7,463 6,940 7,278 

Total 4,811 9,842 10,131 7,648 7,814 

The table below summarises the capital expenditure plans and how these 
plans are being financed by capital or revenue resources.  Any shortfall of 
resources results in a funding need (borrowing).  

Page 59



 6

Capital Expenditure 
£’000’s 

2012/13 
Actual 

2013/14 
Latest 

Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

General Fund 1,390 2,193 2,668 708 536 

HRA 3,421 7,649 7,463 6,940 7,278 

Total 4,811 9,842 10,131 7,648 7,814 

Financed by:      

Capital receipts 637 313 122 258 129 

Capital grants & 
contributions 1,026 1,474 887 317 317 

Direct Revenue Funding 
/Use of Reserves 3,148 8,055 7,420 6,863 7,178 

Net financing need for 
the year 

 
- 

 
- 

 
1,702 

 
210 190 

Other long term liabilities - the above financing need excludes other long term 
liabilities, such as PFI and leasing arrangements which already include 
borrowing instruments.   

2.2 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital 
expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital 
resources.  It is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing 
need.  Any capital expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid 
for, will increase the CFR.  

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the MRP is a statutory annual 
revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line with each 
assets life. 

The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance 
leases).  Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s 
borrowing requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and 
so the Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes.  The 
Council currently has £251k of such schemes within the CFR. 

As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the CFR 
projections, as shown below: 

£’000’s 2012/13 
Actual 

2013/14 
Latest 

Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

Capital Financing Requirement 

CFR - non HRA 945 740 2,397 2,346 2,280 

CFR - HRA 69,959 69,896 69,896 69,896 69,896 

Total CFR 70,904 70,636 72,293 72,242 72,176 

Movement in CFR (473) (268) 1,657 (51) (66) 

Movement in CFR represented by 

Net financing need for 
the year (above) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
1,702 

 
210 

 
190 

Less MRP and other 
financing movements 

 
(473) 

 
(268) 

 
(45) 

 
(261) 

 
(256) 

Movement in CFR (473) (268) 1,657 (51) (66) 

Page 60



 7

Note the MRP includes finance lease annual principal payments. 

2.3 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement 

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General 
Fund capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the 
minimum revenue provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake 
additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary revenue provision - VRP).   

CLG Regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve 
an MRP Statement in advance of each year.  A variety of options are 
provided to councils, so long as there is a prudent provision.   

The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP Statement: 

For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will 
be Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

• Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined 
in former CLG regulations (option 1)  

These options provide for an approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need 
(CFR) each year. 

From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance 
leases) the MRP policy will be: 

• Asset Life Method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of 
the assets, in accordance with the regulations (this option must be 
applied for any expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation 
Direction) (option 3) 

These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over 
approximately the asset’s life.  

There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision 
but there is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made (although 
there are transitional arrangements in place). 

Repayments included in finance leases are applied as MRP.  

2.4 Core funds and expected investment balances 

The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance 
capital expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget 
will have an ongoing impact on investments unless resources are 
supplemented each year from new sources (asset sales etc.).  Detailed below 
are estimates of the year end balances for each resource and anticipated day 
to day cash flow balances.

Page 61



 8

 

*Working capital balances shown are estimated year end; these may be 
higher mid year  
 
2.5 Affordability prudential indicators 

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing 
prudential indicators, but within this framework, prudential indicators are 
required to assess the affordability of the capital investment plans. These 
provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment plans on the 
Council’s overall finances.  As part of the formal governance process, the 
Council approves the following indicators: 

 

2.6 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream. 

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other 
long-term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue 
stream. 

 
 2012/13 

Actual 
2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

Non-HRA 7.84% 1.21% 0.25% 2.57% 2.67% 

HRA  26.14% 26.10% 24.26% 23.96% 23.96% 

 

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the 
proposals in this budget report. 
 
2.7 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the band D 
council tax. 
 
This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to 
the three year capital programme recommended in this budget report compared 
to the Council’s existing approved commitments and current plans.  The 
assumptions are based on the budget, but will invariably include some estimates, 
such as the level of Government support, which are not published over a three 
year period. 
 
 2012/13 

Actual 
2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

Council tax - band D £0.17 £0.14 £(4.11) £4.52 £8.61 

 Year End Resources 
£’000’s 

2012/13 
Actual 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

Fund balances / reserves 12,456 12,005 11,890 12,530 13,831 

Capital receipts 1,419 1,243 1,224 1,070 1,045 

Provisions - - - - - 

Other 1,643 1,473 1,398 1,323 1,245 

Total core funds 15,518 14,721 14,512 14,923 16,121 

Working capital* 186 186 186 186 186 

Under borrowing -3,154 -3,143 -4,824 -4,786 -4,720 

Expected investments 12,550 11,764 9,874 10,323 11,587 

Page 62



 9

 

2.8 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rent 
levels. 
 
Similar to the council tax calculation, this indicator identifies the trend in the cost of 
proposed changes in the housing capital programme recommended in this budget 
report compared to the Council’s existing commitments and current plans, 
expressed as a discrete impact on weekly rent levels.   
 

 2012/13 
Actual 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

Weekly housing rent 
levels 

 
£0.02 

 
£0.08 

 
£0.07 

 
£0.11 

 
£0.33 

 

This indicator shows the revenue impact on any newly proposed changes, 
although any discrete impact will be constrained by rent controls.   
 
2.9 HRA Ratios 
 
 2012/13 

Actual 
2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

HRA debt £m 67 67 67 67 67 

HRA revenues £m 16 16 17 17 17 

Ratio of debt to 
revenues % 

 
435.18 

 
434.53 

 
406.70 

 
401.57 

 
401.57 

 
 
 2012/13 

Actual 
2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

HRA debt £m 67 67 67 67 67 

Number of HRA 
dwellings 

 
3,885 

 
3,893 

 
3,904 

 
3,905 

 
3,908 

Debt per dwelling £ 17,363 17,328 17,279 17,274 17,261 

 
 
3.   Borrowing 
 
The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service 
activity of the Council.  The treasury management function ensures that the 
Council’s cash is organised in accordance with the the relevant professional 
codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity.  This will 
involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the 
organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities.  The strategy covers the relevant 
treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the 
annual investment strategy. 

Page 63



 10

3.1 Current portfolio position 

The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2013, with forward 
projections are  summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt (the 
treasury management operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need 
(the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under 
borrowing.  

£’000’s 2012/13 
Actual 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

External Debt 
Debt at 1 April  67,996 67,750 67,493 67,469 67.456 

Expected change in Debt - - - - - 
Other long-term liabilities 
(OLTL) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Expected change in OLTL (246) (257) (24) (13) - 

Actual gross debt at 31 
March  

67,750     67,493 67,469 67,456 67,456 

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 

70,904 70,636 72,293 72,242 72,176 

Under / (over) borrowing 3,154 3,143 4,824 4,786 4,720 

 

Within the prudential indicators, there are a number of key indicators to 
ensure that the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits.  One 
of these is that the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except 
in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the 
estimates of any additional CFR for 2014/15 and the following two financial years. 
This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but 
ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.       

The Section 151 Officer reports that the Council complied with this prudential 
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  
This view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the 
proposals in this budget report. 

 

3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 

The Operational Boundary.  This is the limit beyond which external debt is 
not normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure 
to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt. 

Operational boundary 
£’000’s 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

Debt 71,456 71,456 71,456 71,456 

Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total 72,456 72,456 72,456 72,456 

 

Page 64



 11

The Authorised Limit for external debt. A further key prudential indicator 
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents a 
limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or 
revised by the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt which, while 
not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the 
longer term.   

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control 
either the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, 
although this power has not yet been exercised. 

2. As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the 
following indicators, as shown below: 

Authorised limit £’000’s 2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

Debt 74,456 74,456 74,456 74,456 

Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total 75,456 75,456 75,456 75,456 

 

Separately, the Council is also limited to a maximum HRA CFR through the HRA 
self-financing regime.  This limit is currently: 
 

HRA Debt Limit £’000 2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

Total 74,701 74,701 74,701 74,701 

 
3.3. Prospects for interest rates 
 
Capita Asset Services has been appointed as the Council’s treasury advisor 
and part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest 
rates.  Appendix 1 draws together a number of current City forecasts for short 
term (Bank Rate) and longer fixed interest rates.  The following table gives the 
Capita Asset Services’ central view.  
 
Annual 
Average % 

Bank Rate 
% 

PWLB Borrowing Rates% 
(including certainty rate adjustment) 

  5 year 25 year 50 year 

Dec 2013 0.50 2.50 4.40 4.40 

Mar 2014 0.50 2.50 4.40 4.40 

Jun 2014 0.50 2.60 4.40 4.40 

Sep 2014 0.50 2.70 4.50 4.50 

Dec 2014 0.50 2.70 4.50 4.60 

Mar 2015 0.50 2.80 4.60 4.70 

Jun 2015 0.50 2.80 4.70 4.80 

Sep 2015 0.50 2.90 4.80 4.90 

Dec 2015 0.50 3.00 4.90 5.00 

Mar 2016 0.50 3.20 5.00 5.10 

Jun 2016 0.50 3.30 5.10 5.20 

Sep 2016 0.75 3.50 5.10 5.20 

Dec 2016 1.00 3.60 5.10 5.20 

Mar 2017 1.25 3.70 5.20 5.30 

Page 65



 12

Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 2008 had been the worst and 
slowest recovery in recent history. However, growth rebounded in quarter 1 and 2 
of 2013 to surpass all expectations.  Growth prospects remain strong looking 
forward, not only in the UK economy as a whole, but in all three main sectors, 
services, manufacturing and construction. One downside is that wage inflation 
continues to remain significantly below CPI inflation so disposbale income and 
living standards are under pressure, although income tax cuts have ameliorated 
this to some extent.   

A rebalancing of the economy towards exports has started but as 40% of UK 
exports go to the Eurozone, the difficulties in this area are likely to continue to 
dampen  UK growth.  The US, the main world economy, faces similar debt 
problems to the UK, but thanks to reasonable growth, cuts in government 
expenditure and tax rises, the annual government deficit has been halved from its 
peak without appearing to do too much damage to growth.    

The current economic outlook and structure of market interest rates and 
government debt yields have several key treasury mangement implications: 

• Although Eurozone concerns have subsided in 2013, Eurozone 
sovereign debt difficulties have not gone away and there are major 
concerns as to how these will be managed over the next few years as 
levels of government debt, in some countries, continue to rise to levels 
that compound already existing concerns.   Counterparty risks therefore 
remain elevated.  This continues to suggest the use of higher quality 
counterparties for shorter time periods; 

• Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2014/15 and 
beyond; 

• Borrowing interest rates have risen significantly during 2013 and are on a 
rising trend.  The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down 
spare cash balances  has served well over the last few years.  However, 
this needs to be carefully reviewed to avoid incurring even higher 
borrowing costs, which are now looming ever closer, where authorities 
will not be able to avoid new borrowing to finance new capital 
expenditure and/or to refinance maturing debt, in the near future; 

• There will remain a cost of carry to any new borrowing which causes an 
increase in investments as this will incur a revenue loss between 
borrowing costs and investment returns. 

3.4  Borrowing strategy  

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means that 
the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been 
fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances 
and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure.  This strategy is prudent 
as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high. 

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be 
adopted with the 2014/15 treasury operations.  The Section 151 Officer will 
monitor interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to 
changing circumstances: 

 

Page 66



 13

• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and 
short term rates, e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse 
into recession or of risks of deflation, then long term borrowings will be 
postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short 
term borrowing will be considered. 

 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in 

long and short term rates than that currently forecastperhaps arising from 
a greater than expected increase in the anticipated rate to US tapering of 
asset purchases, or in world economic activity or a sudden increase in 
inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re-appraised with the 
likely action that fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are 
still lower than they will be in the next few years. 

Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision making body at the next 
available opportunity. 

 
Treasury management limits on activity 

There are three debt related treasury activity limits.  The purpose of these are 
to restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby 
managing risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if these are set to be too restrictive they will impair the 
opportunities to reduce costs / improve performance.  The indicators are: 

• Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a 
maximum limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt position 
net of investments; 

• Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure.  This is similar to the 
previous indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates; 

• Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce 
the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for 
refinancing, and are required for upper and lower limits.   

As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the treasury 
indicators, as follows: 

Page 67



 14

 

£,000’s 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 

Interest rate exposures 

 Upper Upper Upper 

Limits on fixed interest 
rates based on net debt 
 

75,456 75,456 75,456 

Limits on variable 
interest rates based on 
net debt 

8,000 8,000 8,000 

Limits on fixed interest 
rates: 

• Debt only 
• Investments only 
 

 
 

 75,456 
(15,000) 

 
 

 75,456 
(15,000) 

 
 

 75,456 
(15,000) 

Limits on variable 
interest rates 

• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 
 

  8,000 
(15,000) 

 
 

  8,000 
(15,000) 

 
 

  8,000 
(15,000) 

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2014/15 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 100% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years 0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years 0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years 0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years 0% 100% 

Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2014/15 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 10% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 10% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 10% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 10% 

10 years to 20 years 0% 10% 

20 years to 30 years 0% 10% 

30 years to 40 years 0% 10% 

40 years to 50 years 0% 10% 

 

3.5  Policy on borrowing in advance of need  

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in order 
to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow 
in advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.  
 

Page 68



 15

Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting 
mechanism.  

3.6 Debt Rescheduling 

As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term fixed 
interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by 
switching from long term debt to short term debt.  However, these savings will 
need to be considered in the light of the current treasury position and the size of 
the cost of debt repayment (premiums incurred).  
 
The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:  

• the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings; 

• helping to fulfil the treasury strategy; 

• enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the 
balance of volatility). 

 
Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for 
making savings by running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely 
as short term rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on 
current debt.   
 
All rescheduling will be reported to the Cabinet , at the earliest meeting following 
its action. 

Page 69



 16

4  Annual Investment Strategy  

4.1 Investment policy 

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local 
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2011 revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance 
Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  The Council’s investment priorities will be security 
first, liquidity second, then return. 
 
In accordance with guidance from the CLG and CIPFA , and in order to minimise 
the risk to investments, the Council has below clearly stipulated the minimum 
acceptable credit quality of counterparties for inclusion on the lending list. The 
creditworthiness methodology used to create the counterparty list fully accounts 
for the ratings, watches and outlooks published by all three ratings agencies with 
a full understanding of what these reflect in the eyes of each agengy. Using the 
Capita Asset Services ratings service potential counterparty ratings are monitored 
on a real time basis with knowledge of any changes notified electronically as the 
agencies notify modifications. 
 
The Council’s funds are managed by CPBS with reference to a detailed cash flow 
forecast on a daily basis for the current year. Protocols are in place to govern the 
movement of funds within specific limits.  
 
Further, officers recognise that ratings should not be the sole determinant of the 
quality of an institution and that it is important to contiunally assess and monitor 
the financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the 
economic and political environments in which institutions operate. The 
assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion of the 
markets. To this end the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a 
monitor on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” (CDS) and overlay that 
information on top of the credit ratings. This is fully integrated into the credit 
methodology provided by the advisors, Capita Asset Services  in producing its 
colour codings which show the varying degrees of suggested creditworthiness. 
 
Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and 
other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the 
most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment 
counterparties. 
 
The aim of the strategy is to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties 
which will also enable diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk.   
 
The intention of the strategy is to provide security of investment and minimisation 
of risk. 

Page 70



 17

Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in 
Appendix 3 under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’iInvestments categories. The 
maximum total investments to any individual financial institution or its parent 
group is £5m. There is also a combined limit of £10m for investments with part-
nationalised banks. 

4.2 Creditworthiness policy  

This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Capita Asset 
Services.  This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utlilising 
credit ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and 
Standard and Poor’s.  The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with 
the following overlays:  

• credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 
countries. 

 
This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit 
outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of 
CDS spreads for which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which 
indicate the relative creditworthiness of counterparties.  These colour codes are 
used by the Council to determine the suggested duration for investments.   The 
Council will therefore use counterparties within the following durational bands:  
 

• Yellow 5 years 
• Dark Pink 5 years for Enhanced money market fundswith a credit score  

of 1.25  
• Light Pink 5 years for Enhanced money market fundswith a credit score  

of 1.5 
• Purple  2 years 
• Blue  1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK 
 Banks) 
• Orange 1 year 
• Red  6 months 
• Green  100 days  
• No colour  not to be used  

 
The Sector creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than just 
primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, does not give undue 
preponderance to just one agency’s ratings. 
 
Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a short term 
rating (Fitch or equivalents) of  short term rating F1, long term rating A-, viability 
ratings of A- and a support rating of 1.  There may be occasions when the 
counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower than these 
ratings but may still be used.  In these instances consideration will be given to the 
whole range of ratings available, or other topical market information, to support 
their use. 

Page 71



 18

All credit ratings will be monitored daily. CPBS is alerted to changes to ratings of 
all three agencies through its use of the Capita Asset Services creditworthiness 
service.  
 

• if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer 
meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment 
will be withdrawn immediately. 

 

• in addition to the use of credit ratings CPBS will be advised of information 
in movements in CDS spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and other 
market data on a weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in 
downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition this 
Council will also use market data and market information, information on 
government support for banks and the credit ratings of that supporting 
government. 

4.3 Country limits 

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from the 
United Kingdom or countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA+ from 
Fitch. The list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of this 
report are shown in Appendix 4.  This list will be added to, or deducted from, by 
officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy. 

4.4 Investment Strategy 

In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and 
cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for 
investments up to 12 months).    
 
Investment returns expectations.  Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged 
at  0.5% before starting to rise from quarter 3 of 2016. Bank Rate forecasts for 
financial year ends (March) are:  
 

• 2013/ 2014  0.50% 

• 2014/ 2015  0.50% 

• 2015/ 2016  0.75% 

• 2016/ 2017  2.25% 

 

There are upside risks to these forecasts (i.e. start of increases in Bank Rate 
occurs sooner) if economic growth remains strong and unemployment falls faster 
than expected.  However, should the pace of growth fall back, there could be 
downside risk, particularly if Bank of England inflation forecasts for the rate of fall 
of unemployment were to prove to be too optimistic. 

Page 72



 19

The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments 
placed for periods up to 100 days during each financial year for the next four 
years are as follows:  
 

2013/14  0.50%   
2014/15  0.50%   
2015/16  0.75%   

    2016/17  2.25% 
 

Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for 
greater than 364 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity 
requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are 
based on the availability of funds after each year-end. 

 
As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the treasury 
indicator and limit, as shown below: 
 

Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days 

£’000’s 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 

Principal sums invested > 
364 days 

£m 
2,000 

£m 
2,000 

£m 
2,000 

 

For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its business 
reserve instant access and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated 
deposits (overnight to three months) in order to benefit from the compounding of 
interest.   
 

4.5 Investment Risk Benchmarking 

The Council has not adopted any formal benchmarks in this area, as Officers 
believe that decisions on counterparties and maximum investment levels are 
adequate to monitor the current and trend position, and amend the 
operational strategy to manage risk as conditions change.   

4.6   End of year investment report 

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as 
part of its Annual Treasury Report.  

Page 73



 20

5   APPENDICES 
 

1. Interest rate forecasts 

2. Economic background 

3. Treasury Management Practice 1 – Credit and Counterparty Risk 
Management 

4. Approved countries for investments 

5. Treasury management scheme of delegation 

6. The treasury management role of the Section 151 Officer 

 
 
 

Page 74



  APPENDIX G 

APPENDIX 1 - Interest Rate Forecast 2014 - 2017 as at 11
th

 November 2013 

 

P
age 75



 

APPENDIX 2 - Economic Background 
 
Global economy 

The Eurozone (EZ).  The sovereign debt crisis has eased during 2013 which 
has been a year of comparative calm after the hiatus of the Cyprus bailout in 
the spring.  The EZ finally escaped from seven quarters of recession in 
quarter 2 of 2013 but growth is likely to remain weak and so will dampen UK 
growth.  The European Central Bank’s pledge to buy unlimited amounts of 
bonds of countries which ask for a bail out, has provided heavily indebted 
countries with a strong defence against market forces.  This has bought them 
time to make progress with their economies to return to growth or to reduce 
the degree of recession.  However, debt to GDP ratios (2012 figures) of 176% 
Greece, Italy 131%, Portugal 124%, Ireland 123% and Cyprus 110%, remain 
a cause of concern, especially as many of these countries are experiencing 
continuing rates of increase in debt in excess of their rate of economic growth 
i.e. these debt ratios are continuing to deteriorate.  Any sharp downturn in 
economic growth would make these countries particularly vulnerable to a new 
bout of sovereign debt crisis.  It should also be noted that Italy has the third 
biggest debt mountain in the world behind Japan and the US.  Greece 
remains particularly vulnerable and continues to struggle to meet EZ targets 
for fiscal correction.  Many commentators still view a Greek exit from the Euro 
as inevitable and there are concerns that austerity measures in Cyprus could 
also end up in forcing an exit.  The question remains as to how much damage 
an exit by one country would do and whether contagion would spread to other 
countries.  However, the longer a Greek exit is delayed, the less are likely to 
be the repercussions beyond Greece on other countries and on European 
Union banks.   

Sentiment in financial markets has improved considerably during 2013 as a 
result of firm Eurozone commitment to support struggling countries and to 
keep the Eurozone intact.  However, the foundations to this current “solution” 
to the Eurozone debt crisis are still weak and events could easily conspire to 
put this into reverse.  There are particular concerns as to whether 
democratically elected governments will lose the support of electorates 
suffering under EZ imposed austerity programmes, especially in countries like 
Greece and Spain which have unemployment rates of over 26% and 
unemployment among younger people of over 50%.  The Italian political 
situation is also fraught with difficulties in getting a viable coalition which will 
implement an EZ imposed austerity programme and undertake overdue 
reforms to government and the economy. 

USA.  The economy has managed to return to reasonable growth in Q2 2013 
of 2.5% y/y in spite of the fiscal cliff induced sharp cuts in federal expenditure 
that kicked in on 1 March, and increases in taxation.  The Federal Reserve 
has continued to provide huge stimulus to the economy through its $85bn per 
month asset purchases programme of quantitative easing.  However, it is 
expected that this level of support will start to be tapered down by the end of 
2013. It has also pledged not to increase the central rate until unemployment 
falls to 6.5%; this is probably unlikely to happen until early 2015. Consumer, 
investor and business confidence levels have improved markedly in 2013.  
The housing market has turned a corner and house sales and increases in 

Page 76



 

 

23

house prices have returned to healthy levels.  Many house owners have 
therefore been helped to escape from negative equity and banks have also 
largely repaired their damaged balance sheets so that they can resume 
healthy levels of lending. All this portends well for a reasonable growth rate 
looking forward. 

China.  Concerns that Chinese growth could be heading downwards have 
been allayed by recent stronger statistics. There are still concerns around an 
unbalanced economy which is heavily dependent on new investment 
expenditure, and for a potential bubble in the property sector to burst, as it did 
in Japan in the 1990s, with its consequent impact on the financial health of the 
banking sector. There are also increasing concerns around the potential size, 
and dubious creditworthiness, of some bank lending to local government 
organisations and major corporates. This primarily occurred during the 
government promoted expansion of credit, which was aimed at protecting the 
overall rate of growth in the economy after the Lehmans crisis. 

Japan.  The initial euphoria generated by “Abenomics”, the huge QE 
operation instituted by the Japanese government to buy Japanese debt, has 
tempered as the follow through of measures to reform the financial system 
and introduce other economic reforms, appears to have stalled.  However, at 
long last, Japan has seen strong growth of 4% in the first two quarters of 2013 
which portends well for the hopes that Japan can escape from the bog of 
stagnation and help support world growth.  The fiscal challenges though are 
huge; the gross debt to GDP ratio is about 245% in 2013 while the 
government is currently running an annual fiscal deficit of around 50% of total 
government expenditure.  Within two years, the central bank will end up 
purchasing about Y190 trillion (£1,200 billion) of government debt. In addition, 
the population is ageing due to a low birth rate and will fall from 128m to 100m 
by 2050. 

THE UK ECONOMY 

Economic growth.  Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 2008 had 
been the worst and slowest recovery in recent history. However, growth 
rebounded in quarter 1 (+0.3%) and 2 (+0.7%) of 2013 to surpass all expectations 
as all three main sectors, services, manufacturing and construction contributed to 
this strong upturn.  The August 2013 Bank of England Inflation Report 
consequently upgraded growth forecasts for 2013 from 1.2% to 1.4% and for 
2014 from 1.7% to 2.5%.  However, Bank Governor Mark Carney put this into 
perspective by describing this welcome increase as not yet being “escape 
velocity” to ensure we return to strong AND sustainable growth. So very 
encouraging - yes, but, still a long way to go!  However, growth is expected to 
be strong for the immediate future.  One downside is that wage inflation 
continues to remain significantly below CPI inflation so disposable income and 
living standards are under pressure, although income tax cuts have ameliorated 
this to some extent.  A rebalancing of the economy towards exports has started 
but as 40% of UK exports go to the Eurozone, the difficulties in this area are likely 
to continue to dampen UK growth.   

 
Forward guidance.  The Bank of England also issued forward guidance with 
this Inflation Report which said that the Bank will not start to consider raising 

Page 77



 

 

24

interest rates until the jobless rate (Labour Force Survey / ILO i.e. not the claimant 
count measure) has fallen to 7% or below.  This would require the creation of 
about 750,000 jobs and was forecast to take three years. The UK unemployment 
rate currently stands at 2.5 million i.e. 7.7 % on the LFS / ILO measure.  The 
Bank's guidance is subject to three provisos, mainly around inflation; breaching 
any of them would sever the link between interest rates and unemployment levels.  
This actually makes forecasting Bank Rate much more complex given the lack of 
available reliable forecasts by economists over a three year plus horizon. The 
recession since 2007 was notable for how unemployment did NOT rise to the 
levels that would normally be expected in a major recession and the latest 
Inflation Report noted that productivity had sunk to 2005 levels.  There has 
therefore been a significant level of retention of labour, which will mean that a 
significant amount of GDP growth can be accommodated without a major 
reduction in unemployment.  The forecast in this report for Bank Rate not to start 
increasing until quarter 3 of 2016 is based on a slow reduction of unemployment, 
(in line with the Bank of England’s forecast), and contrary to the prevalent market 
view where rates are indicating that Bank Rate is expected to start going up in 
early 2015. 

Credit conditions.  While Bank Rate has remained unchanged at 0.5% and 
quantitative easing has remained unchanged at £375bn in 2013, the Funding 
for Lending Scheme (FLS), aimed at encouraging banks to expand lending to 
small and medium size enterprises, has been extended.  The FLS certainly 
seems to be having a positive effect in terms of encouraging house purchases 
(though levels are still far below the pre-crisis level), FLS is also due to be 
bolstered by the second phase of Help to Buy aimed to support purchasing of 
second hand properties, which is now due to start in October 2013.  While 
there have been concerns that these schemes are creating a bubble in the 
housing market, the housing market remains weak outside of London and the 
south-east with a significant increase in house prices either being entirely 
absent or minimal.  However, bank lending to small and medium enterprises 
continues to remain weak and inhibited by banks still repairing their balance 
sheets and anticipating tightening of regulatory requirements. 
 
Inflation.  Inflation has fallen from a peak of 3.1% in June 2013 to 2.7% in 
September. It is expected to fall back to reach the 2% target level within the 
two year horizon. 

AAA rating. The UK has lost its AAA rating from Fitch and Moody’s but that 
caused little market reaction. 

Capita Asset Services forward view  

Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences 
weighing on the UK. Major volatility in bond yields is likely during the 
remainder of 2013/14 as investor fears and confidence ebb and flow between 
favouring more risky assets i.e. equities, and safer bonds.  

Near-term, there is some residual risk of further QE - if there is a dip in strong 
growth or if the MPC takes action to do more QE in order to reverse the rapid 
increase in market rates, especially in gilt yields and interest rates up to 10 

Page 78



 

 

25

years.  This could cause shorter-dated gilt yields and PWLB rates over the 
next year or two to significantly undershoot the forecasts in the table below.  
The failure in the US, (at the time of writing), over passing a Federal budget 
for the new financial year starting on 1 October, and the expected tension 
over raising the debt ceiling in mid October, could also see bond yields 
temporarily dip until any binding agreement is reached between the opposing 
Republican and Democrat sides. Conversely, the eventual start of tapering by 
the Fed could cause bond yields to rise. 

The longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise, due to the high 
volume of gilt issuance in the UK, and of bond issuance in other major 
western countries.  Increasing investor confidence in economic recovery is 
also likely to compound this effect as a continuation of recovery will further 
encourage investors to switch back from bonds to equities.   

The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is currently 
weighted to the upside after five months of robust good news on the economy. 
However, only time will tell just how long this period of strong economic 
growth will last; it also remains exposed to vulnerabilities in a number of key 
areas.   

 Downside risks currently include:  

• The conflict in the UK between market expectations of how quickly 
unemployment will fall as opposed to the Bank of England’s forecasts 

• Prolonged political disagreement over the US Federal Budget and 
raising the debt ceiling 

• A return to weak economic growth in the US, UK and China causing 
major disappointment to investor and market expectations. 

• The potential for a significant increase in negative reactions of populaces 
in Eurozone countries against austerity programmes, especially in 
countries with very high unemployment rates e.g. Greece and Spain, 
which face huge challenges in engineering economic growth to correct 
their budget deficits on a sustainable basis. 

• The Italian political situation is frail and unstable. 
• Problems in other Eurozone heavily indebted countries (e.g. Cyprus and 

Portugal) which could also generate safe haven flows into UK gilts. 
• Monetary policy action failing to stimulate sustainable growth in western 

economies, especially the Eurozone and Japan. 
• Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partners - the EU 

and US, depressing economic recovery in the UK. 
• Geopolitical risks e.g. Syria, Iran, North Korea, which could trigger safe 

haven flows back into bonds 

The potential for upside risks to UK gilt yields and PWLB rates, especially for 
longer term PWLB rates include: - 

• A sharp upturn in investor confidence that sustainable robust world 
economic growth is firmly expected, causing a surge in the flow of funds 
out of bonds into equities. 

Page 79



 

 

26

• A reversal of Sterling’s safe-haven status on a sustainable improvement 
in financial stresses in the Eurozone. 

• Further downgrading by credit rating agencies of the creditworthiness 
and credit rating of UK Government debt, consequent upon repeated 
failure to achieve fiscal correction targets and sustained recovery of 
economic growth which could result in the ratio of total government debt 
to GDP to rise to levels that undermine investor confidence in the UK 
and UK debt. 

• UK inflation being significantly higher than in the wider EU and US, 
causing an increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields. 

• In the longer term – an earlier than currently expected reversal of QE in 
the UK; this could initially be implemented by allowing gilts held by the 
Bank to mature without reinvesting in new purchases, followed later by 
outright sale of gilts currently held. 

Page 80



 

 

27

APPENDIX 3 - Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and 
Counterparty Risk Management Specified and Non-Specified 
Investments and Limits 

 

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling denominated, 
with maturities up to maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality 
criteria where applicable. 
 

 
 Minimum ‘High’ 
Credit Criteria 

Use 

Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility 

N/A In-house 

Term deposits – local authorities   N/A In-house 

Term deposits – banks and building 
societies  

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house 

Treasury Bills UK sovereign rating In-house 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

AAA In-house 

Money market funds AAA 
In-house (£5m 
limit for cash flow 
purposes) 

 
Term deposits with nationalised banks and banks and building societies  

 
 
NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do not 
meet the Specified Investment criteria.  A maximum of £5m will be held in 
aggregate in non-specified investment 
 
A variety of investment instruments will be used, subject to the credit quality of the 
institution, and depending on the type of investment made it will fall into one of the 
above categories. 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max of total 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

UK  part nationalised 
banks 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-
house  

£10m 1 year 

Banks part 
nationalised by AAA 
or AA+ sovereign 
rating countries – non 
UK 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-
house  

£5m 1 year 

Page 81



 

 

28

The criteria, time limits and monetary limits applying to institutions or investment 
vehicles are: 
 
1. Maturities of Any Period 
 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max %  of 
non-specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Fixed term deposits with 
variable rate and variable 
maturities: -Structured 
deposits 

Sovereign rating  
of AAA or  AA+ 
and minimum 
colour of green on 
our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-house  100% 1 year 

Collateralised deposit  
(see note 1) 

UK  Sovereign 
rating or note 1 

In-house  100% 1 year 

Certificates of deposit 
issued by banks and 
building societies covered 
by UK  Government  
(explicit) guarantee 

UK  Sovereign 
rating and 
minimum colour of 
green on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house 100% 1 year 

UK Government Gilts 
UK sovereign 
rating 

In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 2 year 

Sovereign bond issues 
(other than the UK govt) 

AAA 
In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 2 year 

Bond issuance issued by a 
financial institution which is 
explicitly guaranteed by  
the UK Government  
(refers solely to GEFCO - 
Guaranteed Export 
Finance Corporation) 

UK sovereign 
rating 

In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 2 year 

 

Page 82



 

 

29

 

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies 
(OEICs): - 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max %  of 
non-specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

 1. Government Liquidity 
     Funds 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house  100% 5 years 

 2. Enhanced Money 
Market Funds with a 
credit score of 1.25 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 5 years 

 3. Enhanced Money 
Market Funds with a 
credit score of 1.50 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 5 years 

 4. Gilt Funds 
Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 5 years 

 

Note 1. as collateralised deposits are backed by collateral of AAA rated local 
authority LOBOs, this investment instrument is regarded as being a AAA rated 
investment as it is equivalent to  lending to a local authority. 
 
If forward deposits are to be made, the forward period plus the deal period should 
not exceed one year in aggregate.   
 
N.B. buy and hold may also include sale at a financial year end and repurchase 
the following day in order to accommodate the requirements of SORP. 

Page 83



 

 

30

 
 
2.  Maturities in excess of 1 year 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 

Max %  of 
non-
specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Term deposits – UK local 
authorities  

N/A 
In-
house 

100% 5 year 

Term deposits – banks and 
building societies  

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA+ and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house 

100% 5 year 

Certificates of deposit issued 
by banks and building 
societies covered by UK  
Government  (explicit) 
guarantee 

UK sovereign rating 
and minimum colour 
of orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house  

100% 5 year 

Certificates of deposit issued 
by banks and building 
societies  

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA+ and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house  

100% 5 year 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

AAA 
In-
house  

100% 5 year 

 
Whilst these are maximum limits, under normal circumstances the Section 151 
Officer will ensure lower limits are maintained. The higher limits are required to 
allow flexibility in the movement of funds if a particular issue or circumstance 
arose e.g. global banking crisis. 
 
The maximum total investment to any individual financial institution or its parent 
group is £5m.  
 
Accounting treatment of investments.  The accounting treatment may differ 
from the underlying cash transactions arising from investment decisions made by 
this Council. To ensure that the Council is protected from any adverse revenue 
impact, which may arise from these differences, we will review the accounting 
implications of new transactions before they are undertaken. 
 

Page 84



 

 

31

APPENDIX 4 - Approved countries for investments 

 

AAA                      

• Australia 

• Canada 

• Denmark 

• Finland 

• Germany 

• Luxembourg 

• Netherlands 

• Norway 

• Singapore 

• Sweden 

• Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

• France 

• Hong Kong  

• U.K. 

• U.S.A. 

 

 

 

Page 85



 

 

32

APPENDIX 5 - Treasury management scheme of delegation 

 

(i) Full council 

• receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, 
practices and activities 

• approval of annual strategy. 

• approval of / amendments to the council’s adopted clauses, treasury 
management policy statement and treasury management practices 

• budget consideration and approval 

• approval of the division of responsibilities as contained in the Financial 
Regulations 

 

(ii) Cabinet and Governance & Audit Committee 

• reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body. 

• receiving and reviewing the annual strategy and making recommendations 
to the responsible body. 

• receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on 
recommendations. 

 

SCRUTINY AND MONITORING 
  
Council delegates the scrutiny and monitoring of the Treasury Management 
function to the Governance and Audit Committee.  As a minimum they will receive 
a Mid Term Treasury report on investment issues and performance. Training will 
be made available for members of the Governance and Audit Committee to 
ensure they have the necessary skills to undertake this role. Recommendations 
will be reported to Cabinet. 
 
The Governance and Audit Committee will also have access to professional and 
independent advice and support as required in order to undertake this role. 

 

Page 86



 

 

33

APPENDIX 6 - The treasury management role of the Section 151 Officer and 
deputy 

The Section 151 Officer responsibilities are as follows: 
 
� managing the Treasury Management function 
 

� recommending treasury management policies and practice for 
approval, reviewing the same regularly and monitoring compliance 

� Ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills 
are maintained by CPBS 

� Receiving and reviewing management information reports from 
CPBS 

� Reviewing the performance of the treasury management function 
 

� Informing Elected members 
 

� Submitting regular treasury management reports to Members 
� Reviewing the treasury management strategy 
� Maintaining an effective internal audit of treasury management and 

liaising with external audit. 
 
Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) is responsible for the 
provision of: 
 

• treasury management strategy statements and practices for approval  

• regular treasury management policy reports 

• budget and budget variations 

• management information reports 

• adequate treasury management resources and skills, and effective division 
of responsibilities within the treasury management function, and; 

• arranging the appointment of external treasury management advisors.  

 

Where the use of particular instant access accounts, notice accounts and 
money market funds has been approved by the Section 151 Officer, CPBS 
treasury officers have delegated authority to withdraw and deposit funds within 
the agreed limits contained in this strategy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 87



 

 

34

 
 

 
 

Page 88



 
APPENDIX H  

FEES AND CHARGES - Proposals 2014-15 
 
Environmental Health 
 
Activity Policy Proposal  

Licensing In general RPI + 1%, but 
with exceptions. 
Policy set by Licensing 
Committee 

Fees set to cover costs. 

Food Safety/ Health and 
Safety Training 

SHDC has the 
responsibility of educating 
the community on food, 
health & safety matters. 
Fees set to cover costs and 
take into account course 
demand and competitors 
fees 
 

Fees set to cover costs. 

Pollution Control Statutory fees are set 
not to make a profit, but to 
ensure businesses are 
operating legally 

Charges in line with policy 

Food Safety Discretionary fees to cover 
costs. Voluntary  
surrender and export fees 
are statutory. Statutory fees 
are set not to make a profit, 
but to ensure businesses 
are operating legally 
 

Charges in line with policy 

Scrap Metal  As per the Scrap Metal 
Dealers Act 2013.The fee 
will be set locally by each 
local authority on a cost 
recovery basis, but local 
authorities will have a duty 
to have regard to guidance 
issued by the Secretary of 
State which outlines the 
issues that should be 
considered by them when 
setting the fee and what 
activities the fee can cover 

Charges in line with policy. New 
charge during 2013-14 

Micro Chipping  Discretionary fee set to 
cover costs and encourage 
users of the new service  

Charges in line with policy. New 
charge during 2013-14 

 
 
 
 

Page 89



Environmental Services  
 
Activity Policy Proposal  

Cemetery Fees 
(Spalding Special 
Expenses) 

Fees are reviewed annually 
and set by the Council, 
taking into account the 
sensitive nature of this 
service 
 

No change for 2014-15. 

Allotments (Spalding 
Special Expenses) 

Charges to be in line with 
those charged in the 
neighbouring area 
 

No change for 2014-15. 

Provision of Markets Fees to be in-line with 
those charged in the 
neighbouring area 
 

No change for 2014-15. 

Car Parking Charges Service to breakeven over 
a 4 year period and make a 
contribution to the 
Replacement and 
Refurbishment Reserve 
 

No change for 2014-15. 

Bus Departure Charges Charges to bus operators 
only 

Fee levels have been increased 
to 29p per departure. 

Excess Charges Fees to be set as a 
deterrent 
 

No change to fees proposed, in 
line with car park charges. 

Garden Waste Sacks Maximise income without 
encouraging fly tipping 

No change to fees. 

Bulky Waste Maximise income without 
encouraging fly tipping 

No change to fees. 

Charges for street 
scene fines 

Charges for fines listed for 
each offence   

Set to cover costs. Includes 
dropping of litter 

 
Community Development 
 
Activity Policy Proposal  

Ayscoughfee Gardens 
(Tennis, Putting and Bowls) 
(Spalding Special Expenses) 
 

To increase charges in 
line with inflation and 
review annually 

Fees and charges will be 
increased by between 5% and 
10% for 2014-15. 
 

Ayscoughfee Hall Museum To cover costs and 
match competitor prices 

Existing fees assessed and 
revised where appropriate. 
New fees introduced for 2014-
15 
 

South Holland Centre 5% reduction in annual 
deficit (excluding capital 
charges and support 
services) 

It is proposed most ticket 
prices stay the same for 2014-
15, after benchmarking with 
nearest competitors.  

Page 90



Halley Stewart Playing Field 
(Spalding Special Expenses) 

To increase charges in 
line with inflation and 
review annually 

No change to fees. 

Castle Field To increase charges in 
line with inflation and 
review annually 

No change to fees. 

Monks House Playing Field 
(Spalding Special Expenses) 

To increase charges in 
line with inflation and 
review annually 

No change to fees. 

Castle Sports Complex and 
Swimming Pool 

Review annually with 
contractor  

No change to fees. 

 
 
Assets and Property 
 

  

Activity Policy Proposal 

Industrial Units A phased  approach to 
increasing fees and 
charges was approved, 
in two lots of 3 years, 
spreading over 6 years 
in total 

No change for 2014-15. In line 
with market competitors  

 
Planning and Building Control 
 
Activity Policy Proposal 

Land Charges Charge in line with 
competitors 

No change to fees and 
charges 

Building Control 
 
 
 

Charge based on 
hourly rate to 
reflect the actual 
cost of each 
project. 

Charges based on hourly rate, 
to cover costs incurred by the 
Council. 
 

High Hedges Charge set by 
ourselves 

Proposal to maintain our 
charge to encourage 
submissions. 
 

Building Control Consultancy These are set by 
us, at a cost per 
project as per the 
new fee 
regulations which 
are based on 
hourly rates, as per 
CIPFA guidance. 
Charges based on 
amount per m2, in 
line with the market 
rate activity 
 

Fees are set by SHDC. 
Service to maintain charges 
based on a market rate. 
 

Page 91



 
 
Housing 
 
Activity Policy Proposal 

General Fund Housing 
Rents 

 Increase in rents in line with 
Government Guidelines  

 

Page 92



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Deputy Leader / Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic 

Services and the Assistant Director Finance (S151) 
 
To:    Cabinet – 10 December 2013 
 
(Author:  Mark Finch, Assistant Director Finance (S151)) 
 
Subject: Financial Performance Quarter 2 2013-14 
 
Purpose: To provide information on the forecast full year financial position of the 

Council as at 30 September 2013   
 

Recommendation: 
 
a) That the report and recommendations in Appendix A be noted and approved to be 

recommended to Council. 
 
Recommendations to full Council: 
 
a) To approve the virement for the budget challenge for £127,000, which has no net effect 

on the budget, Section 1- Revenue; 
 
b) To approve the contributions to and from reserves as shown in Appendix A, Section 1- 

Revenue; and 
 
c) To approve the increase to the Private DFG budget by £75,710 and the Public 
      DFG budget by £110,660 and funding, Section 3- Capital. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This report provides information on the forecast full year financial performance for 

four separate areas. 
 

• Revenue Budget incorporating Spalding Special Expenses and the Housing 
Revenue Account 

 
o Forecast revenue outturn for 2013-14 
o Unallocated reserve levels 
 

• Council Tax and Business Rates  
o In year collection Council Tax 
o In year collection Business Rates 
 

• Capital 
o Forecast actuals against budget 
o Sources of Financing 
o Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 

Agenda Item 9.

Page 93



• Treasury 
o Security of investments 
o Liquidity levels 
o Yield levels 
o Borrowing 
 

1.2 Where actions or decisions are required, these are detailed at the end of each 
section with options. 
 

2.0 OPTIONS 
 

2.1 To note the report and to approve the recommendations detailed in Appendix A. 
 
2.2 To note the report and not approve the recommendations detailed in Appendix A. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 To provide timely information to Members on the overall finances of the Council and 

to make the best use of resources available. 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS AND TIMELINES 

 
4.1 To ensure that Members are updated regularly on the overall Council financial 

position and to act on any budget amendments required to reflect the latest 
forecasts of spend and income. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
 
 

Page 94



5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 The report is of a financial nature and financial details are included within the 

appendix. 
 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 Risks are highlighted within the appendix. 
 
5.8 Staffing 
 
5.8.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
  
5.9 Stakeholders / Consultation 
 
5.9.1 This implication has been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 

there are none. 
 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 Budget implications affect all wards.  
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers: - None  
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post: Mark Finch – Assistant Director Finance 
Telephone Number: 01775 761161 
Email: mark.finch@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
 
Key Decision – No 
 
Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A - Financial Report for the quarter ending 30 September 2013  
 

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



    

APPENDIX A 
 

South Holland District Council  

 

Financial Report for the quarter ending September 2013  
 
This report has four sections 
 

• Section 1 – Revenue budget 

• Section 2 – Council Tax and Business Rates 

• Section 3 – Capital budget 

• Section 4 – Treasury update 
 

Section 1 - Revenue Budget 
 

General Fund 
 

The table below details the full year outturn against the approved budget for 2013-14.  
This is calculated by taking expenditure and income up to 30 September 2013 and 
budgeted income and expenditure for the remainder of the year.  Significant 
variances to the approved budget are detailed in Table 2. 
 
 
 
Table 1 –Revenue Outturn   
 
 
 
Forecast outturn against budget = 98.81% 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97



    

 

Table 2 – Significant Variances 2013-14 Forecast outturn 

 
 
Salaries 
The budgeted vacancy factor for 2013-14 is 2% and progress is being monitored.  
The majority of vacant posts are currently being used to fund Agency, interim or  
casual staff or held vacant because of the recruitment moratorium. The forecast 
savings are built into overall position shown above, excluding those from shared 
 management which are earmarked for other use.  
 
From 1 November 2013 certain employees will be automatically enrolled into the  
local government pension scheme, for those not currently in the pension scheme, 
of a certain age or earnings. The impact on the budget will be monitored during the 
next quarter. 
 
Other items 
 
Revenues 
Court income is being closely monitored and although seen to be exceeding budget  

Page 98



    

at this time with more people being taken to court, a prudent approach has been used 
and the collection of court fees is being closely monitored. A view will be taken on 
estimating an impairment allowance for those debts which will not be recovered. 
 
Housing benefit overpayments are being closely monitored and forecasting £93k 
additional income. A view will be taken for Quarter three if the income against 
budget continues to perform at this rate. 
 
Recycling Income 
There is some risk associated with the contract recycling income. Negotiations  
with the Contractor are ongoing, but at this stage we are assuming an income 
shortfall based on performance as at Quarter two. Any known further outcomes will form  
part of the next quarterly report. 
 
Table 3 – Other Budget Items 
 

Other budget items are shown in the table below: 
 

 
 
Please note 
Items marketed with an asterix 
 
*New Homes Bonus to be transferred to the Council Tax reserve as per the 
2013/14 budget setting report, as this does not support the base budget.  
The additional £25k New Homes Bonus relates to additional distribution notified 
after Council had approved the budget and is part of the transfer shown to 
reserves. 
 

Page 99



    

** includes the reversal of depreciation charges for Council owned assets which 
are included within the directorate structure and the corporate provision for the 
repayment of debt. 
 

Actions/Decisions 
 
To note the forecast outturn position on the 2013-14 revenue budget.  
 
 
 
Recommendations 
 
There are no recommendations as at Quarter 2 
 
 
Table 4 – Virement Decisions Required 
 
The following budget amendments are required to reflect the latest forecasts of 
spend and income to ensure reported budget performance remains updated.   
 

 Supplementary Budget virements for approval: £’000 

Budget Challenge outcomes to a Corporate budget 127 

Budget Challenge savings from service areas (127) 

Net effect 0 

 
 
This budget journal is as a result of the budget challenge with the Chief Executive 
and CMT with Service Managers, during Quarter two. The budget journal moves the 
savings from the departmental budgets to a corporate area. These savings have also 
been worked into the revised budget as a base for 2014/15 estimates.  
 
 
Actions/Decisions 
 
To approve the virement for the budget challenge as shown in table 4. This has a net 
effect on the overall budget. 
 
Recommendations 
 
To approve the virement for the budget challenge. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 100



    

Table 5 – General Fund Reserve Balances 
 
The table below shows the General Fund reserve balance as at 30 September. The 
balances within the table are funds that can be used to finance both revenue and 
capital expenditure, for example, one-off invest to save projects and to meet 
expenditure arising from unexpected events. 
 

General Fund Reserves Reserve 
Amount 
Available  
£’000 

Affordable Housing Reserve 118 

Capital Reserve 562 

Climate Change Reserve 24 

Council Tax Reserve* 2,522 

Emergency Planning Reserve 10 

Insurance Reserve 237 

Organisational Development Reserve 960 

Planning Reserve 232 

Replacement and Refurbishment Reserve 264 

Community Cohesion 44 

Section 106 earmarked reserve 11 

Sub total  4,984 

Cumulative GF Working Balance 2,034 

Total General Fund reserves 7,018 

 
 

• Includes the transfer of New Homes Bonus Grant of £405,605 as at Quarter 2, 
(including the additional £25k noted in table 3 above), to the Council Tax 
reserve, taking into account contributions to and from reserves, as part of the 
2013/14 estimate process. The table above also accounts for the 
recommendations shown below: 

 
Actions/Decisions 

 
It is recommended that the following amounts are transferred to reserves for future 
use, some of which were identified as additional income in Quarter 1* 
 

• New Burdens grant, Community Right to Challenge and Community Value - 
£16,400 to the Council Tax reserve* 

 

• Revenues and Benefits additional grant, which includes: 
o L/A data sharing £12,990 to the Council Tax reserve* 
o DCLG C/Tax £50,620 to the Council Tax reserve* 
o DWP Welfare reform changes £21,180 to the Council Tax reserve* 
 

 

Page 101



    

• In addition it was agreed during the closure of accounts that amounts shown 
as Commuted Sums from Developers on the balance sheet received in prior 
financial years, would be moved to revenue. It is recommended that this 
amount of £99,660 is transferred to the Organisational development reserve 
for its intended use. 

 

• An amount of £37,000 (rounded) to be taken from the £250,000 contributed to 
the Council Tax reserve at year end, for 2012/13 DFG commitments. This is to 
part fund the amount of £75,710 highlighted in the capital section to increase 
public DFG’s. This is to correctly reflect the commitments in 2012-13, which 
were not previously recognised in the rollover budgets.  

 
 

Recommendations 
It is recommended that the above amounts are transferred to and from reserves for 
future use 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 102



    

Spalding Special Expenses 
Expenditure relating to Spalding Special expenses forms part of the Council’s 
General Fund budget and is included in Table 1 above. The approved budget for 
2013-14 is £209,830 and is funded by Spalding Taxpayers, the Band D charge for 
the financial year being £23.28. The forecast outturn for 2013-14 shows in the table 
below 
 
Table 6 – Forecast Revenue Outturn   

 
 

 
Please Note: The actuals to date include a full year recharge for grounds 
maintenance and the remainder of income and expenditure as at quarter two.  
This accounts for the reason that some of the service areas appear to have 
exceeded budget.  
 
 
The Council maintains an earmarked reserve relating to Spalding Special Expenses. 
The unspent budget at the year end is transferred into the reserve which can then 
used to meet expenditure arising from unexpected events and to cover any future 
deficit which may arise.  
 

Page 103



    

The current unallocated reserve balance is £81,640, after earmarking funds for Crime 
Prevention and the amount previously agreed for Christmas Decorations (underspent 
in 2012-13).  The balance also includes aside a contingency equal to 5% of 2013-14 
budgeted expenditure.  Any variations from the budget or use of the Spalding Special 
Expenses Reserve recommended from the Spalding Town Forum would need to be 
approved by Cabinet/Council.  
 
 
Actions/Decisions 
 
To note the forecast outturn on Spalding Special Expenses for 2013-14 
 
Recommendations 
There are no recommendations as at Quarter 2 
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
 

The HRA is on target to deliver the budget, with a forecast surplus due to investment 
income.  The table below details the full year forecast outturn against the approved 
budget for 2013-14 .  
 
Table 7 –Forecast Revenue Outturn 

 
 
 
 
There is some risk associated to potential downward revaluations on HRA non 
dwellings, such as community centres and garages. If the valuation at year end 
produces a downward valuation, then it would be an actual hit on reserves, as per 
2012-13. The property market will be closely monitored, but final values will not be 
know until the valuation carried out at year end.    
 
The HRA Capital Programme is reported in Table 11 within the Approved Capital 
Programme. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 104



    

 
Table 8 – Unallocated HRA Revenue Reserves 
 
The table below shows the unallocated reserve balance as at 1st April 2013. The 
balances within the table are funds that can be used to finance both revenue and 
capital expenditure, for example, one- off invest to save projects and to meet 
expenditure arising from unexpected events. 
 

Housing Revenue Account Reserves Unallocat
ed 

Amount 
Available  

£’000  

Insurance Reserve 200 

Sub total  200 

Cumulative Working Balance 1 April 20012 1,955 

Outturn 2012-13 3,123 

Adjustments between accounting basis and 
funding basis under statute 135 

Balance on the HRA 31st March 2013 5,213 

Forecast outturn 2013-14 (719) 

Capital Programme Rolled over 2012-13 (618) 

Total HRA unallocated reserves 4,076 
 

 
Actions/Decisions 
 
To note the forecast outturn position on the 2013-14 Housing Revenue Account. 
 
Recommendations 
 
There are no recommendations as at Quarter 2 
 

Section 2- Council Tax and Business Rates 
 
Council Tax 
 
 
2013/14 In-Year Collection 
 
The anticipated impact on in-year collection rate due to the introduction of Council 
Tax Support and the Council Tax Technical changes introduced in April 2013 is 
showing in the collection rates compared to previous years.   
At the end of September 2012, the collection rate was 58.97%, against a collectable 
debit of £36.6m.   
At the end of September 2013, as shown in Table 9 below, the collection rate was 
58.56%. 

Page 105



    

 
It is too early in the year yet to form a view on the overall impacts.  Recovery is 
progressing and over the course of the coming months the picture will become 
clearer. 
 
 
Table 9 - September 2013 in-year collection position 
 

 
June 
2013 

September 
2013 

% Collected 30.22% 58.56% 

 
 
 
Business Rates 
 
Changes introduced in 2013/14 

The business rates retention scheme was introduced on 1st April 2013 and the 

previous system of pooling the business rates has ceased.  The new system 

provides a direct link between business rates growth and the amount of money 

councils have to spend on local people and local services. Councils will be able to 

keep a proportion of the business rates revenue as well as growth on the revenue 

that is generated in their area. This will provide a strong financial incentive for 

councils to promote economic growth.  

2013/14 In-Year Collection 
 
At the end of September 2013, as shown in Table 3 below, the collection rate was 
60.57% against a collectable debit of £24.8m. 
 
Recovery timescales are on track and pro-active telephone debt chasing has been 
introduced.   
 
Table 10- September 2013 in-year collection position 

 

  
June 
2013 

September 
2013 

% Collected 33.20% 60.57% 

 
A forecast of retained business rates at Quarter 2 is not yet available, with South 
Holland District Council being in a Lincolnshire Pool arrangement with Lincolnshire 
County Council and North Kesteven District Council. The Lead Authority will be 
working on a year end position and SHDC share later in the year.  
 
Actions/Decisions required 
That the position at Quarter 2 for the Council’s 2013-14 Council Tax and Business 
Rates to be noted. 
 

Page 106



    

Recommendations 
 
There are no recommendations as at Quarter 2 
 

Section 3 – Capital Budget  
This section reports on: 

• Outturn against 2013-14 approved capital programme 

• Risks, issues and key messages 
 
Table 11 – Outturn against 2013-14 approved capital programme 
 

 
 
This is to be resourced by: 
 

Source of Financing Latest 
Approved 
£’000 

Forecast 
Outturn 
£’000 

Use of Capital Receipts 313 313 

Capital Grants and Contributions 1,474 1,567 

Direct Revenue Funding/Use of Reserves 8,055 8,203 

Total 9,842    10,083 

 
The original budget was approved at Council on 27 February 2013. Further 
amendments have subsequently been made to the revised budget (Latest 
Approved), reflecting previous year incomplete schemes brought forward and 
additional DFG grant of £4,717. 
 
Spend against budget  23.4% 

Page 107



    

Forecast Outturn   £10,083,000 
 
Explanation of variances 

• Private DFGs overspend of £75,710 (GF) due to commitments from 12/13 
budget not previously rolled over. See section 1revenue contributions from 
reserve, 

• Public DFGs overspend of £110,660 (HRA) due to Commitments from 12/13 
budget not previously rolled over 

• PSICA grants funded by English Heritage £54,000, budget in the process of 
being confirmed with Planning 

 
 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
The Council's underlying need to borrow is called the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR). The Council has taken on debt of £67.456m as a result of HRA Self Financing 
from 1 April 2012. The CRF increases when additional borrowing is undertaken and 
is reduced by the statutory requirement to make a minimum revenue provision (MRP) 
for debt repayment and any contributions from the HRA resulting from impairment 
and valuation losses. 
 
A negative change to the CFR equates to debt being repaid. A positive change to the 
CFR equates to a need to undertake additional borrowing 
 
Table 12 – Capital Financing Requirement 

 
 
 
Actions/Decisions 

Page 108



    

 
To note the 2013-14 Capital Programme forecast outturn 
 
Recommendations 
 
To increase the Private DFG budget by £75,710 and the Public DFG budget by 
£110,660 to correctly reflect the commitments from 2012-13 that were not previously 
recognised in the budget rollovers from 2012-13. 
 
Requesting authority to use the Regional Housing fund reserve up to a maximum 
value of £125,000 to support and fund the private DFG budget and that the budget 
will be increased when the demand on the budget requires it to be increased. This is 
to prevent the scheme having to close down if the demand becomes greater than the 
current budget. 
 
 
 

Section 4 – Treasury 
 
This section reports on: 

• Security, Liquidity and Yield of Investment portfolio 

• Current Debt Position 

• Risks, issues and key messages 
 

Security 
 

The Council has not adopted any formal benchmarks for the management of risk as 
Officers believe that decisions on counterparties and maximum investment levels are 
adequate to monitor the current and trend positions and amend the operational 
strategy to manage risk as conditions change. 
 
The Council uses the creditworthiness service provided by Capita Asset Services 
which provides a maximum duration for investments depending on the colour rating 
calculated for each financial institution. All investments held by the Council are within 
the recommended maximum duration. 
 

Counterparty Exposure

CCLA Money Market Fund

Lloyds Bank

National Westminster PLC

Nationwide BS

Barclays PLC

 
 

 
Because of the limited 

number of counterparties 
available, deposits are 
mainly spread amongst 

four institutions. 
 

Page 109



    

 
There is a small balance held with Clydesdale Bank which stands at £11,568. This 
amount is being retained to keep the account open in case their counter-party rating 
improves, thereby allowing for future investments to be made. Clydesdale Bank does 
not show on the above pie chart due to being such a minimal amount. 
Liquidity 
 
Cash 
The Council’s average level of deposits during the first half of the financial year was 
£20.8m. As at 30 September the Council had £4m instant access cash available to 
meet cash flow requirements.  The table below shows the amounts held in relation to 
the remaining period to maturity.  
 

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

£

C
a

ll

<
 1

M
o

n
th

1
-3

M
o

n
th

s

3
-6

M
o

n
th

s

6
-9

M
o

n
th

s

9
-1

2

M
o

n
th

s

>
 1

2

M
o

n
th

s

Maturity Period

Maturity Structure of Investments

 
 
Yield 
 
Budgeted Interest 2013-14   £62,500  
Actual Interest as at Q2 2013-14  £75,072 
Forecast interest 2013-14            £120,000     
 
*Interest is apportioned between the General Fund and HRA. The forecast at Quarter 
2 is estimated at General Fund £90k and Housing Revenue Account £30k. 
 
Target yield (Average 3 month LIBID) 0.38% 
Actual Yield as at Q2 2013-14    0.72% 
 
External Borrowing 
 
The Council borrowed £67.456m from the PWLB on 28th March 2012 to meet its 
obligations under the Housing Revenue Finance Reforms. This was borrowed for a 
period of 50 years on a maturity basis at a rate of 3.48%. No borrowing has been 
undertaken during quarter 2. 
 
Actions/Decisions required 

The percentage 
maturity 

structure of 
investments is: 

 
Call = 20% 

< 1 mth = 26% 

< 3 mths = 15% 

< 6 mths = 21% 

< 9 mths = 18% 

< 12 mths = Nil 

> 12 mths = Nil 

Page 110



    

 
That the forecast position for the Council’s 2013-14 Treasury outturn be noted. 
 
Recommendations 
There are no recommendations as at Quarter 2. 

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	7. Indicative Funding Allocation: Individual Electoral Registration
	Item 7 - Appendix A

	8. General Fund Draft Estimates and Financial Medium Term Plan
	Item 8 - Appendix A
	Item 8 - Appendix B
	Item 8 - Appendix C
	Item 8 - Appendix D
	Item 8 - Appendix E
	Item 8 - Appendix F
	Item 8 - Appendix G
	Item 8 - Appendix H

	9. Financial Performance Quarter 2 2013-14
	Item 9 - Appendix


